CITY OF RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL

M VIRTUAL MEETING AGENDA
RIO REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M.
DeLL TUESDAY, JULY 7, 2020
= CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
e 675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL

WELCOME - Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City Council are
available at the City Clerk’s office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue and available on the City’s website
at cityofriodell.ca.gov. Your City Government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and

participate in Rio Dell City Council meetings often.

SPECIAL PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY ALTERATIONS TO MEETING FORMAT
CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19)

Due to the unprecedented public health threats posed by COVID-19 and the resultant need for social
distancing, changes to the City Council and Planning Commission meeting format are required.
Executive Order N-25-20 and N-29-20 from Governor Gavin Newsom allow for telephonic Council
meetings of the City Council and waives in-person accessibility for Council meetings, provided that
there are other means for the public to participate. Therefore, and effective immediately, and
continuing only during the period in which state or local public health officials have imposed or
recommended social distancing measures, the Rio Dell City Council will only be viewable via
livestreaming through our partners at Access Humboldt via their YouTube channel or Suddenlink

channels on Cable TV.

Public Comment by Email:

In balancing the health risks associated with COVID-19 and need to conduct government in an
open and transparent manner, public comment on agenda items can be submitted via email
at publiccomment@cityofriodell.ca.gov. Please note the agenda item the comment is directed to
(example:. Public Comments for items not on the agenda) and email no later than one hour prior
to the start of the Council meeting. Your comments will be read out loud, for up to three minutes.

Meeting can be viewed on Access Humboldt's website at https://www.accesshumboldt.net/.
Suddenlink Channels 10, 11 & 12 or Access Humboldt’s YouTube Channel at

https://www.youtube.com/user/accesshumboldt.

Zoom Public Comment:
When the Mayor announces the agenda item that you wish to comment on, call the conference

line and turn off your TV or live stream. Please call the toll fee number 888-475-4499, enter
Meeting ID 987 154 0944 and press star (*) 9 on your phone - this will raise your hand. You

will continue to hear the meeting on the call. When it is time for public comment on the item
you wish to speak on, the Clerk will unmute your phone. You will hear a prompt that will
indicate your phone is unmuted. Please state your name and begin your comment. You will

have 3 minutes to comment.




A.  CALLTO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL
C. CEREMONIAL MATTERS

D. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over
which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Council or staff is not intended. Items
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for
consideration if the Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the Council that the
item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring immediate action.
Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes.

E. CONSENT CALENDAR

The Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Council action will be enacted with one
vote. The Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Councilmembers if there is anyone who
wishes to address any matter on the Consent Calendar. The matters removed from the Consent
Calendar will be considered individually following action on the remaining consent calendar items.

1) 2020/0707.01 - Approve Minutes of the June 16, 2020 Regular Meeting
(ACTION) 1

2) 2020/0707.02 - Approve Minutes of the June 24, 2020 Special Meeting
(ACTION) 10

3) 2020/0707.03 - Approve Amended Joint Powers Agreement of the
Humboldt Transit Authority (HTA) (ACTION) 14

4) 2020/0707.04 - Receive and File Check Register for June (ACTION) 25

5) 2020/0707.05 - Receive and File Temporary Designation of Place of
City Council Meetings (ACTION) 28

F.  ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR
G. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS
1) 2020/0707.06 - City Manager/Staff Update (RECEIVE & FILE) 29

H.  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/STUDY SESSIONS



1) 2020/0707.07 - Presentation by JJA CPA, Inc. on the FY 2018-2019
Audited Financial Statements (RECEIVE & FILE) 34

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

1) 2020/0707.08 - Discussion of the City’s Nuisance Abatement Committee’s
Activities (DISCUSSION /POSSIBLE ACTION) 131

2) 2020/0707.09 - Update on 2020 Regional Slurry Seal Project and
Modifications (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 134

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

1) 2020/0707.10 - Introduction and First Reading (by tile only) of Ordinance
388-2020 Amending Chapter 15 “Construction Codes” of
the Rio Dell Municipal Code to incorporate California
Building Code exemptions and to establish Agricultural

Building Exemptions (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION)
138

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS

ADJOURNMENT

The next regular City Council meeting is scheduled for
Tuesday, July 21, 2020 at 6:30 p.m.



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

JUNE 16, 2020

The regular “virtual” meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by
Mayor Garnes.

Mayor Garnes, Mayor Pro Tem Woodall, Councilmembers

ROLL CALL: Present:
Johnson, Strahan, and Wilson

Others Present: City Manager Knopp, Chief of Police Conner, Interim
Finance Director Dillingham, Water/Roadways
Superintendent Jensen, Wastewater Superintendent
Taylor, and City Clerk Dunham

Absent: Community Development Director Caldwell (later joined the
meeting)

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

Mayor Garnes asked if there were any public comments. No public comments were received
at this time.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Mayor Garnes asked if any councilmember, staff or member of the public, would like to
remove any item from the consent calendar for separate discussion.

Councilmember Strahan removed Consent Calendar items 1 and 2 for separate discussion.

Motion was made by Johnson/Wilson to approve the consent calendar including approval of
Resolution No. 1456-2020 adopting the 2020-2021 GANN Appropriations Limit, authorizing
the City Manager and Chief of Police to sign a Memorandum of Understanding with the City
of Fortuna for Dispatch Services, and to receive and file the Check Register for May. Motion

carried 5-0.

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR

Approve Minutes of the June 2, 2020 Regular Meeting
Councilmember Strahan referred to page 2 of the minutes related to the public comment

received from Kathryn Conant regarding the rise in crime and nuisance dogs and asked if
anyone responded to her comment.

City Clerk Dunham indicated that she had reached out to Ms. Conant and advised her to
contact the police department any time she experienced a problem with barking dogs or other
police related matters and that her comment would be read at this meeting.
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Approve Resolution No. 1454-2020 Ordering and Calling for a General Municipal election to
fill three (3) City Council seats, requesting the consolidation of the election with the General
election to be held on November 3, 2020, requesting the services of the Humboldt County
reqgistrar of Voters, providing for Notice of Election, and adopting uniform policies pertaining
to Candidate Statements and fees

Councilmember Strahan reminded everyone of the upcoming election for City Council and

encouraged anyone who is interested in running, to apply.

Motion was made by Strahan/Wilson to approve Consent Calendar items 1 and 2. Motion
carried 5-0.

REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

City Manager/Staff Update
City Manager Knopp reviewed highlights of the staff report and called for questions from the

Council.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall asked if staff would be having follow-up conversations with DHHS
regarding the homeless situation in the City and commented that she had received several

complaints from citizens over the past couple of weeks.

City Manager Knopp said that staff would schedule a follow-up phonel call and invite Connie
Beck from DHHS to a future Council meeting to discuss the issue.

Councilmember Wilson commented on the street maintenance paving project and asked if
the paving would extend all the way down to Miller Ct.

City Manager Knopp clarified that it would terminate at Miller Ct.

Councilmember Wilson commented that the new pavement seems to be fairly uneven and
noted that new asphalt is usually smooth. He asked if that is because it is just an overlay.

City Manager Knopp explained that this project is a maintenance paving project and not one
where the base of the road is reconstructed. He said that it a trade off in that either a shorter
segment of the road is done and you create a perfect outcome or you try and stretch the
available funding as far as you can and cover more area. He pointed out that the speed limit
is 25 MPH in this residential zone so it is not quite as important as for example, Wildwood

Ave. where you need to create a smoother surface.

Councilmember Wilson then mentioned the ATP project on Eeloa Ave. and said that he
understood the sidewalk was going to continue down in front of the vacant parcel adjacent to

the freeway onramp.
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City Manager Knopp said that the sidewalk was extended to the maximum extent of the
scope of the project but never was to continue further than the current termination point. He
explained that the sidewalk construction in front of the vacant parcel would occur with the
development of that parcel. He said that as the Council is aware, there were some
modifications to the intersection that shortened the length of the sidewalk by pushing the
sidewalk back but no work was authorized outside the scope of the project.

Councilmember Wilson commented that it was his understanding that three of the
madifications included the sidewalk in front of the library, one at the intersection of Davis St.
and Wildwood Ave. and the third was to add to the length of the sidewalk on Eeloa Ave.

Mayor Garnes and Councilmember Strahan were under the same impression.

City Manager Knopp said that there was never a proposal to do anything outside the scope of
the ATP project and that anything outside the scope would not be reimbursed by the State.
He said with regard to Davis St., that particular item may not fit within the budget so the
sidewalk section upgrade may not happen partially due to delays in the project and

uncertainty on the final design.

City Manager Knopp invited councilmembers to stop by City Hall and look at the project
drawings. He explained that the modifications had to do with curb location changes which

shortened the sidewalk.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall commented that the new Stop sign on Eeloa Ave. sits back from
where the old Stop sign was and asked if the location of the new sign was permanent.

Councilmember Strahan commented further on the street maintenance project and said that
she stopped by and talked to the project manager for Hooven Construction and expressed
concerns regarding the paving and said that it is wavy with several rock pockets. She
questioned whether they were following the City’s plans and if anyone was inspecting the

work.

City Manager Knopp commented that the City Engineer recommend specifications and
pointed out that the project was approved as a maintenance paving project with a simple
overlay. In order to make it a perfectly smooth ride, the road surface would have to be rebuilt.
He commented that this would accomplish a much smaller scale project and with

maintenance paving projects you are able to get a larger area done.

Councilmember Strahan noted that there are some rock pockets which will eventually turn
into pot holes and ruin that piece of the project if it is not corrected.

Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen said that had been out there but the foreman he
talked to was not there today. He said that he did notice some rough spots and there are
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possibly some things they could do to make it smoother but he had not had a chance to talk
to the City Manager about it yet. He noted that the second lane was just paved which seems
to be smoother than the first one but they were not able to drive on it as they were still

paving.

Councilmember Johnson said that he was not sure what specifications were quoted in the
contract but all contracts include specifications for materials and workmanship. Typically for
smoothness, there is departure from a 12-foot straight edge which provides limits. The specs
also address rock pockets and texture which is supposed to be uniform. He said it really
depends on the specs the City and Hooven agreed to in the contract but certainly the City

needs to be enforcing those specs.

Councilmember Strahan asked Councilmember Johnson if he would be willing to meet with
the City Manager and review the contract.

Councilmember Johnson agreed and said that he would run by the project in the morning
then meet with the City Manager.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall commented that she was contacted by Charlie Manzi, a property
owner near the Fern St. dip and said that he was under the impression the pavement would
come to the edge of his driveway.

City Manager Knopp said that he actually spoke with Mr. Manzi. He said that the area in

question was not included in the square footage of the project scope but if the Council would
like to add it to the scope, staff could bring back a contract modification to include that

particular area.

Consensus of the Council was that staff come back with a cost estimate and diagram of the
paving area.
City Manager Knopp pointed out that since the next regularly scheduled meeting is not until

July 7, 2020, a special meeting would be needed to discuss the matter. He presented a map
of the area for the Council to view. Mayor Pro Tem Woodall and Councilmember Johnson

did not have the video capability to view the map.

" Councilmember Johnson commented that the Zoom meetings were not working well for him
and said that with massage parlors and barber shops opening up, he did not understand why
Council meetings were not being held in the City Council Chambers. He asked what it would

take to get the Council back to meeting at City Hall.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall agreed.
City Manager Knopp agreed to seek advice from the County Public Health Officer.
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Mayor Garnes expressed concern that with the six-foot distancing of councilmembers and
staff, it doesn’t leave a lot of space for the public. She said she felt Zoom meetings provide
an easier method for the public to be engaged and to be able to see who is talking.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall commented that in the beginning of the pandemic, the Council held
meetings in the Council Chambers with restrictions and it seemed to work. She added that it
is easier for her to see people and to communicate and that she is ready to start meeting in

the Council Chambers.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall questioned Chief Conner about Hooven Construction not having a
flagger on the job site.

Chief Conner said that he spoke with the contractor and was told that they were short-handed
but agreed they needed a flagger. A flagger was on site by the afternoon.

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

Authorize Mayor to sign letter related to the River Bluff Cottages
City Manager Knopp asked councilmembers if they had any comments or recommended

changes to the draft letter as presented.

Councilmember Wilson thought the letter was well written and noted that the calls for service
to the River Bluff Cottages ended on May 25, 2020 and suggested the calls from that time to

present also be included.

Councilmember Strahan agreed and said that a copy of the letter was to be sent to the
County Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) but questioned whether it should
also go to the State once Danco has a chance to respond, since the State provided funding

for the project.

City Manager Knopp was confused as to who it should be sent to at the State since the
project is operated by Danco and DHHS.

Councilmember Strahan said the State department granting the funding for the project should
be made aware of what Danco is putting the City through.

He agreed to send a copy of the letter to the State Tax Credit Allocation Committee.

Motion was made by Strahan/Wilson authorizing the Mayor to sign a letter related to
concerns about the River Bluff Cottages with a copy sent to the State, after allowing Danco

the opportunity to respond. Motion carried 5-0.

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS
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Approve Resolution No. 1453-2020 Adopting the FY 2020-2021 Operating and Capital

Budget and Position Allocation Table
City Manager Knopp provided a staff report. He began by reviewing the budget timeline

followed by review of City Council priorities and the changes to the budget since the last
budget presentation on June 2, 2020.

The proposed budget totaled $4,781,877 with operating expenditures of $3,407,921, debt
service and pass-thru amounts of $491,656, and capital projects of $682,300. The budget
represented an increase of $349,855, or 7% over the previous year budget primarily due to
the addition of $200,00 in contingencies, capital project carryovers and a new Community
Service Officer position. Revenues totaled $4,071,208 with $710,669 coming from the use of
reserves. All estimated ending fund balances remained above the 30% target with the

exception of the Building Fund.

Councilmember Strahan asked where the $200,000 contingency for the Total Compensation
Study was reflected in the budget.

City Manager Knopp explained that it was spread across the various funds.

Finance Director Dillingham referred to the Budget Summary by Department spreadsheet
which showed the distribution.

City Manager Knopp continued with review of General Fund revenues by type and pointed
out that in terms of citywide revenues, over half of the revenue comes from the enterprise
funds. He noted that property tax revenue remains stable and cannabis tax revenue was

increased by $75,000 based on actuals.

Next was discussion of the Organizational Chart. City Manager Knopp noted that employee
retention has been difficult and that there are some big challenges in moving forward related
to the City's labor force and retention. He presented a graph representing an employee
turnover rate of 100% over the past few years with Public Works the highest followed by the
Police Department and Finance Department. He said that the current rate of employee
turnover is not sustainable and pointed out that the Council did list personnel as a priority for

the year.

He reported that the draft Total Compensation Study was complete which would be
presented to the Council possibly at the next meeting or by the July 21, 2020 regular
meeting.

He identified a correlation of the pay rate with turnover of employees and stressed the
importance of having consistent staffing. He noted that with the City having a very healthy

fund balance, the trajectory of the City looks good.
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Finance Director Dillingham said that one of the positive points is that the City has a very
good diverse spread and in going back to the General Fund it shows that the City has had

very little negative impact as a result of the pandemic.

City Manager Knopp reviewed staff's recommendation related to adoption of the budget and
called for additional questions or comments from the Council.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall thanked the City Manager and the Finance Director for putting
together a great budget presentation.

Councilmember Johnson expressed his thanks and for allowing the City to keep its head
above water. He said that many other cities have been forced to cut staff and that the City is

in a fantastic position because of the great leadership of its staff.

Councilmember Strahan commented that taking $710,000 from reserves to balance the
budget is incomprehensible to her.

Councilmember Wilson noted that a lot of the budget is on the Capital side and that it is good
to be able to spread capital expenditures out. In the past, there was a year when everything
came up all at once resulting in excessive capital expenditures for vehicles and equipment.
He said that the end result of the reserve fund balance is that it is close to where it started
and the City is building assets by investing in its infrastructure. He commented that he would

like to see empty store fronts filled.

Mayor Garnes thanked all of the staff and pointed out that going to the grave with a full wallet
doesn’t get you anywhere. The City needs to spend money to keep the City looking good.

Motion was made by Johnson/Woodall to approve Resolution No. 1453-2020 adopting the FY
2020-2021 Operating and Capital Budget and Position Allocation Table, and to approve
Resolution No. 1455-2020 amending and adopting the City Master Salary Table. Motion
carried 4-1 with Councilmember Strahan dissenting.

Introduction and First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 388-2020 amending Chapter
15 “Construction Codes” of the Rio Dell Municipal Code to incorporate California Building

Code exemptions and to establish Agricultural Building Exemptions
Community Development Director Caldwell requested this item be continued to the July 7,
2020 regular meeting which would allow staff to amend the draft ordinance to include the

Suburban zone for agricultural building exemptions.

Councilmember Strahan said that she would like to see where the zones in question are
located.
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Community Development Director Caldwell indicated that he would include in the staff report,
a zoning map of the designated zones.

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall extended thanks to the Chamber of Commerce for displaying
American Flags in the median for Memorial Day. She also suggested the Mayor resume
reciting the Pledge of Allegiance during Council meetings and felt that it is important.

The consensus of the Council was that the Mayor recite the Pledge of Allegiance during
Zoom Council meetings.

Councilmember Wilson agreed and reportéd on his attendance at the Humboldt Waste
Management Authority (HWMA) meeting where the board passed the recycling increase
resulting in less than a $1.00/mo. to customers.

He referred to GHD’s update to the Council on May 5, 2020 related to the Safe Routes to
School project where a drawing was presented depicting an additional 77 feet of sidewalk
and with Council consensus, would like clarification on that report at the next meeting.

Consensus of the Council was that it be placed on the July 7, 2020 agenda for discussion.

Councilmember Johnson said that he would like City Council meetings to resume in the City
Council Chambers.

Councilmember Strahan reported that she would be attending an HCAOG meeting this week
so had nothing to report on it at this time. She also announced that there would be a meeting
of the Nuisance Advisory Committee tomorrow and reminded citizens with complaints to send

them in and the committee would address them.

Garnes reported that she would be included on a phone call with the County Public

Mayor
e things are opening up including State

Health on Thursday noting that more and mor
campgrounds but not yet County campground.

She mentioned the COVID-19 Minute Campaign the City is participating in and said that a
volunteer filmed activity going on in the City and they commented that Rio Dell is doing more

than most other cities including hands on with seniors etc.

She also expressed thanks to Nick Angeloff and the Chamber friends for display of the flags
which is something to be proud of and shows the City’s patriotism.

ADJOURNMENT
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Motion was made by Johnson/Garnes to adjourn the meeting at 7:53 p.m. to the July 7, 2020
Regular meeting. Motion carried 5-0.

Debra Garnes, Mayor
Attest:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
JUNE 24, 2020

Mayor Garnes called the Special “Virtual” Meeting of the Rio Dell City Council to order at
4:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Garnes, Mayor Pro Tem Woodall, Councilmembers
Johnson and Wilson

Absent:  Councilmember Strahan (excused) (Joined the meeting later)

Others Present: City Manager Knopp, Chief of Police Conner, Community
Development Director Caldwell, Water/Roadways
Superintendent Jensen, Wastewater Superintendent Taylor,

and City Clerk Dunham

Absent Interim Finance Director Dillingham:

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

City Manager Knopp announced that there were no live public comments and City Clerk
Dunham announced that there were no online public comments received.

SPECIAL MEETING MATTERS

Adopt Resolution No. 1458-2020 Amending the FY 2019-2020 Adopted Budget to
Increase Appropriations for Additional Paving Maintenance Work

City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and explained that at the June 16, 2020
regular meeting, the Council directed staff to bring back cost estimates for paving of the
turnout at the corner of Fern Street and Eeloa Avenue. He said that the estimated cost for

the additional paving work is $6,520.

The resolution increases the FY 2019-2020 General Fund Capital Project budget by that
same amount to cover the cost for the additional work.

Councilmember Wilson commented that he looked at the area and assumed the paving
would include the entire turnout area including the area up to the driveway.

City Manager Knopp stated that his assumption was correct.

Councilmember Johnson asked if the quoted price per square foot was in line with the
original bid estimate.

City Manager Knopp responded that it was and that the numbers pencil out.

-10-
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No public comment was received related to this agenda item.

Motion was made by Johnson/Woodall to approve Resolution No. 1458-2020 amending
the FY 2019-2020 adopted Capital Projects budget to increase appropriations for
additional paving maintenance work. Motion carried 4-0.

Adopt Resolution No. 1457-2020 Rescinding Resolution No. 1454-2020 Ordering and
Calling a General Municipal Election to fill two 4-year terms and one 2-year term on the
Rio Dell City Council

City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and explained that the Council at their meeting
of June 16, 2020 adopted Resolution 1454-2020 ordering and calling for the General
Municipal Election to fill three expired City Council seats for 4-year terms. In
conversations with County Elections, they concurred that one of the terms should be for
two years rather than four years since Councilmember Johnson was only appointed to fill
the seat vacated by Bryan Richter until the next general election rather than the remainder

of the term that would have ended on November 2022.

City Clerk Dunham further explained that electing a person to a 2-year term gets the
Council back on track with the normal staggering of terms. The resolution rescinds the
prior resolution and modifies the language to identify the correct terms for the three

vacancies.

Councilmember Johnson asked how the potential candidate for the 2-year term is
selected.

City Manager Knopp stated that staff was still waiting for an opinion from the City Attorney
regarding that question.

No public comments were received on this agenda item.

Motion was made by Johnson/Wilson to adopt Resolution No. 1457-2020 rescinding
Resolution No. 1454-2020 ordering and calling a General Municipal Election to fill two 4-
year terms and one 2-year term on the Rio Dell City Council. Motion carried 4-0.

Authorize Mayor to sign letter related to Mobility on Demand Program

City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and explained that Councilmember Strahan is
the City’s representative on the Humboldt County Association of Governments (HCAOG)
board. HCAOG as the Regional Transportation Planning Agency in Humboldt County, is
developing a Mobility on Demand Strategic Development Plan to assess new mobility
technologies and methods to serve our region and ways to supplement or replace existing
transportation services. During this process a list of potential pilot projects were identified,
including the Redwood Transit Service route from Fortuna, through Rio Dell and Scotia.

-11-
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Service to Rio Dell would be replaced by an on-demand service that would provide
connectivity to Fortuna then to the existing system.

He noted that Councilimember Strahan made a motion at the last HCAOG meeting to
remove Rio Dell and Scotia from the proposed pilot project and the motion was successful.
She requested the City Council send a letter reaffirming that request.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall said that she contacted Greg Pratt, the General Manager of
Humboldt Transit Authority (HTA) and he said that because the City is part of the Joint
Powers Agreement (JPA) any changes to the JPA would have to come to the City Council
for approval. As such, the Council didn't really have anything to worry about but that

sending the letter was a good idea.

Councilmember Wilson was in concurrence to send the letter and said a change in the bus
service may hurt a lot of people who are dependent on it for transportation.

Mayor Garnes expressed her appreciation to Councilmember Strahan making the motion
to remove Rio Dell and Scotia from the pilot project.

Councilmember Strahan joined the meeting at this time, 4:17 p.m.

She addressed the issue and said that the HCAOG board was very responsive to her
request and said that they had another meeting Monday night and the pilot project is in the
planning stage. She said the reason she requested the letter is because she wanted to

express the view point from the entire City Council; not just her.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall reiterated the conversation she had with Greg Pratt regarding the
JPA.

Councilmember Strahan indicated that the point about the JPA was not discussed at the
HCAOG meetings and said that she appreciated her contacting Greg Pratt..

No public comments were received regarding this agenda item.

Motion was made by Woodall/Strahan to authorize the Mayor to sign a letter related to the
Mobility on Demand Pilot Program. Motion carried 5-0.

COUNCIL REPORTS

Mayor Garnes reported that she asked the Humboldt County Safety Officer on whether the
City Council could conduct meetings in the Council Chambers as requested by Mayor Pro
Tem Woodall and Councilmember Johnson. The answer was that they were not allowed

-12-
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so the City like all other Councils and boards would continue to have Zoom meetings until
further notice.
ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Johnson/Wilson to adjourn the meeting at 4:21 p.m. to the July 7,
2020 regular meeting. Motion carried 5-0.

Debra Garnes, Mayor

Attest:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

-13-
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Rio Dell City Hall |
675 Wildwood Avenue DE LL

Rio Dell, CA 95562
(707) 764-3532
cityofriodell.ca.gov

July 7, 2020
TO: Rio Dell City Council
FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

SUBJECT:  Approval of Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Humboldt
Transit Authority

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Authorize the Mayor to sign the attached agreement.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The Humboldt Transit Authority Board recently approved a change to its joint power agreement
(JPA), which now requires approval by all of HTA’s member agencies to become effective.

The primary revision to the JPA is to designate the HTA Finance Manager as the agency’s
Treasurer, and the HTA General Manager Director as its Auditor-Controller. Currently, these
roles are filled by the County Treasurer and County Auditor, respectively, and all of HTA’s

operational funds are released first to the County before being forwarded to HTA. This
arrangement can cause a delay of up to six months before HTA actually receives its operational

funds, which may result in cash flow problems for HTA. This revision would expedite funds
being transferred to HTA’s account for payroll and monthly invoices.

In addition, the proposed JPA revisions would broaden the service area to ensure Humboldt
County residents have options to get outside the county and connect to the National Bus
Network. In addition revisions would change the HTA Board regular meeting schedule from
every month to at least quarterly, as determined annually by resolution of the HTA Board.

As of agenda publication, the attached agreement is under review of the City Attorney. It is
anticipated the City Attorney will review the agreement prior to the Council meeting. No
concerns are expected at this time.

Attachments: HTA Agenda Summary from March 4, 2020.
Amended and Restated JPA of the Humboldt Transit Authority.

1!
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, HUMBOLDT Office: (707) 443-0826
133 V Street Fax: (707) 443-2032
A Public Entity Serving Humboldt County Since 1976 www.hta.org

Eureka, CA 95501

TO: Chair Pitino
All Governing Board Members
FROM: Greg Pratt, General Manager
DATE: March 4, 2020
SUBJECT: Humboldt Transit Authority’s Joint Power Agreement (JPA)

The Joint Powers agreement was created on January 28, 1975 between the County of Humboldt, the
Cities of Eureka, Arcata, and Fortuna. Since then, there have been several amendments including adding
the City of Trinidad, and then later the City of Rio Dell. Over the last 45 years there have been several
amendments to the JPA so Staff is recommending incorporating past amendments into one document.

At the December 2019 Board Meeting, Staff discussed a few needed changes to the JPA. Below is a

proposed summary of those changes.

1. Regular Meetings
The current language states that the governing board will hold at least one regular meeting every

month. Staff is recommending a change because there are a few months where meetings do not
need to be held because of no agenda items. The recommendation is to hold quarterly meetings
based on a calendar set by the Board and to set special meetings on the first Wednesday of the

month as needed.

Currently, the jurisdiction of the Authority is restricted to the territory within the County of
Humboldt. Staff is recommending changing the language to allow the Humboldt Transit Authority
to provide transportation outside of the County to connect the National Bus Network to make

sure residents have the necessary options.

, 2. Geographical Jurisdiction
|

The County Treasurer is designated as the Treasurer of the Authority and the County Auditor-
Controller is designated as the Auditor of the Authority. To expedite funds being transferred into
our account for payroll and monthly invoices, Staff is recommending changing designation of the

!

l 3. Treasurer and Auditor
Treasurer to HTA Finance Manager and the Auditor-Controller designation be given to the HTA
General Manager.

Action Recommended: Approve Amendment. If approved, the General Manager will coordinate with each
representative to their respective entity for Council/Board approval as soon as possible.
The Revisions will become effective upon the approval by the majority vote of the members.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT OF THE HUMBOLDT
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

This Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Humboldt Transit Authority is
made and entered into pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 6500 et seq., and
supersedes the initial Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Among the Cities of Arcata, Eureka, and
Fortuna, and the County of Humboldt effective January 28, 1975, and subsequently amended to
include the Cities of Rio Dell and Trinidad. This Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement

(“Agreement”) is effective as of ,20 .
RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Humboldt Transit Authority was formed in 1975 by the Cities of Arcata, Eureka,
and Fortuna, and the County of Humboldt, and subsequently joined by the Cities of Rio Dell and
Trinidad (each a “Member,” collectively the “Members”) to provide public transportation services

throughout the Humboldt County region; and

WHEREAS, the Members desire to amend said Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement to revise the
designations of the Authority’s Treasurer and Auditor-Controller in order to obtain operational and

fiscal efficiencies; and,

WHEREAS, the Members further desire to amend said Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement to
revise the regular meeting schedule of the Authority Governing Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, the Members further desire to amend said Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement to
extend the geographical service area of the Authority to allow it’s transit riders access to the national

bus network; and

WHEREAS, the Members believe it would be desirable and convenient to restate the Joint Exercise
of Powers Agreement in its entirety, including previous amendments, and further amend said

Agreement as recited herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, based on the mutual covenants, conditions and terms recited herein, which
are made a material part of this Agreement, the undersigned public agencies, collectively referred to
herein as the “Members,” enter into this Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement and agree

as follows:

ARTICLE I — DEFINITIONS

1.1. General. Unless the context otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in this Article
shall, for the purposes hereof, have the meanings herein specified.

1.2. Act. “Act” means Article 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1
of the Government Code of the State of California.

1.3. Authority. “Authority” means the Humboldt Transit Authority created pursuant hereto.
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1.4.

1.5,

1.6.

2.1.

2.2

3.1,

3.2.

Mills-Alquist-Deddeh Act. “Mills-Alquist-Deddeh Act” means Chapter 4 (commencing with
Section 99200) of Part II, Division 10 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California.

County. “County” means the County of Humboldt, California.

Redwood Transit System. “Redwood Transit System” means the public transit service
provided by the Authority along Highway 101, connecting all of the cities represented on the
Authority and making intermediate stops in the unincorporated area of the County.

ARTICLE II - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Purpose. This Agreement is made pursuant to the Act providing for the joint exercise of
powers common to public agencies. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the joint
exercise of powers for the purpose of providing public transit services in a manner consistent
with the Regional Transportation Plan within the geographical territory over which the
Authority has jurisdiction pursuant to Section 2.2 hereof. In order to provide such public
transit services, the Authority may finance, acquire, construct, manage, operate and maintain
public transit systems and related property and facilities, excluding intra-city systems unless
the consent of the city is first obtained, and apply for and receive grants or loans from
appropriate sources, including the Mills-Alquist-Deddeh Act and other state and federal laws.
Each of the parties hereto is authorized to exercise such powers pursuant to its organic law.

Geographical Jurisdiction. The jurisdiction of the Authority shall extend to all territory lying
within the County and outside the County to ensure residents have access to the national bus

network.
ARTICLE III - CREATION AND OPERATION OF AUTHORITY

Creation of Authority. Pursuant to the Act, there is hereby created a public entity to be
known as the “Humboldt Transit Authority.” The Authority is a public entity separate and

apart from the parties to this agreement.

Governing Board. The Authority shall be administered by the Governing Board, consisting of
seven (7) members and up to seven (7) alternates. One (1) member and one (1) alternate shall
be appointed by the City Council of Arcata from its Council; one (1) member and one (1)
alternate shall be appointed by the City Council of Fortuna from its Council; one (1) member
and on (1) alternate shall be appointed by the City Council of Eureka from its Council; one (1)
member and one (1) alternate shall be appointed by the City Council of Trinidad from its
Council; one (1) member and one (1) alternate shall be appointed by the City Council of Rio
Dell from its Council; and two (2) members and one (1) or two (2) alternates shall be
appointed by the Board of Supervisors of County from its Board. The Governing Board shall
be called the Governing Board of the Humboldt Transit Authority. All voting power shall
reside in the Governing Board. Additional general purpose governments may be represented
upon such terms and conditions as are agreed upon by the parties hereto.

Page 2 of 9

HUMBOLDT TRANSIT AUTHORITY
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, AMENDED AND RESTATED

-17-



3.3.

3.4

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

4.1.

Members of the Governing Board shall receive no compensation except .for actual expenses
incurred while performing the duties and activities of the Board. Each member of the
Governing Board shall serve at the pleasure of the appointing party hereto; provided, however,
that membership thereon shall terminate upon termination of the office created in the
paragraph above. Vacancies shall be filled by the appointing party thereto.

Regular Meetings. The Governing Board shall provide for its regular and special meetings;
provided, however, that at least one regular meeting shall be held quarterly. The date, hour and
place of the holding of the regular meetings shall be fixed by resolution of the Governing
Board and a copy of such resolution shall be filed with each party hereto.

Ralph M. Brown Act. All meetings of the Governing Board of the Authority, including
without limitation, regular, adjourned regular, and special meetings, shall be called, noticed,
held and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act
(commencing with Section 54950 of the Government Code)

Minutes. The Secretary of the Authority shall cause to be kept minutes of the Governing
Board and shall, as soon as possible after each meeting, cause a copy of the minutes to be
forwarded to each member of the Governing Board and to Arcata, Fortuna, Eureka, Rio Dell,

Trinidad and County.

Quorum. A majority of the Governing Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business, but the affirmative vote of at least a majority of all board members is necessary to
approve any action of the Governing Board. However, if less than a majority of the Board is

present at a meeting, the members present may adjourn the meeting.

Rules. The Governing Board may adopt and amend such rules and regulations for the conduct
of its meetings and affairs as are necessary or desirable to accomplish its stated purposes.

ARTICLE 1V- OFFICERS

Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Secretary. The Governing Board shall elect a Chairman and
a Vice Chairman and shall appoint a Secretary who may, but need not, be a member of the
Governing Board. The officers shall perform the duties normally appertaining to said offices

and,

4.1.1 The Chairman shall sign all contracts on behalf of the Authority and perform such

other duties as may be imposed by the Governing Board;

4.1.2 The Vice-Chairman shall act in the absence of the Chairman; and

4.1.3 The Secretary shall countersign, all contracts on behalf of the Authority, perform such
other duties as may be imposed by the Governing Board, and keep minutes of all
meetings and cause a copy of the minutes to be forwarded to each of the members of
the Governing Board and to Arcata, Fortuna, Eureka, Rio Dell, Trinidad and County,
and cause a copy of this Agreement to be filed with the Secretary of State pursuant to

the Act.
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4.2.

4.3

5.1.

5.2

5.3

6.1.

6.2.

Treasurer and Auditor. The Finance Manager of the Authority is hereby designated as the
Treasurer of the Authority and the General Manager of the Authority is hereby designated as
the Auditor of the Authority. As the Authority's depositary, the Treasurer shall have custody of

all money of the Authority from whatever source.

The Treasurer and the Auditor shall have the duties and obligations set forth in Sections 6505
and 6505.5 of the Act and shall assure that there is strict accountability of all funds and report
of all receipts and disbursements of the Authority. The Board of Supervisors of the County
shall determine reasonable charges to be made against the Authority for the services of the

Treasurer and Auditor-Controller.

Bonding. The Governing Board shall designate the officers or other persons, in addition to the
Treasurer and Auditor-Controller, having charge of handling or having access to any property
of the Authority, and shall set the amount of their official bonds, pursuant to Section 6505.1 of

the Act.
ARTICLE V- ADMINISTRATION

Administrative Entity. The Governing Board of the Authority is hereby designated as the
administrative entity for the purpose of carrying out this Agreement.

Budget. The Governing Board shall adopt an annual budget for the administration of the
Authority.
Services of Parties. On request of the Governing Board, one or more of the parties hereto, and

such party's employees, agents or consultants, may agree to provide all or a portion of the
services requested by the Governing Board, on terms and conditions agreed upon by the party

and the Authority.

ARTICLE VI - POWERS

Common Powers. The Authority shall have the powers common to Arcata, Fortuna, Eureka,
Rio Dell, Trinidad and County to finance, acquire, construct, manage, operate and maintain
transit systems and related facilities for providing public transit services.

Included Powers. The Authority may in its own name do all acts necessary to exercise said
common powers to implement the Regional Transportation Plan, including, but not limited to,

the following:

6.2.1. Make and enter into contracts;
6.2.2. Acquire, construct, manage, maintain or operate any buildings, works, facilities,

improvements or other property;
6.2.3. Incur debts, liabilities or obligations;
6.2.4. Employ agent and employees;
6.2.5. Sue and be sued in its own name;

Page 4 of 9

HUMBOLDT TRANSIT AUTHORITY
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, AMENDED AND RESTATED

-19-



6.3:

6.4.

6.5.

Lol

T

1.3

6.2.6. In accordance with Section 6509.5 of the Act, invest money in the Treasury of the
Authority that is not required for immediate necessities;
6.2.7. Apply for, accept and use grants and other funds from any source for public transit

purposes;
6.2.8. Receive revenues from the provision of public transit services;
6.2.9. Administer agreements to provide public transit services made between any of the

parties hereto and other persons or entities.

Restrictions on Exercise of Powers. Such powers shall be exercised as provided in the Act
and shall be subject, in accordance with Section 6509 of the Act, to such restrictions upon the
manner of exercising such powers as are imposed upon County in the exercise of similar

powers.

Obligations. The debts, liabilities and obligations of the Authority shall not be the debts,
liabilities or obligations of any party to this Agreement.

Advances of Funds. On request of the Governing Board, any party hereto may advance its
public funds to the Authority for the purpose of meeting the Authority’s operating expenses.
Any such advance of funds shall be repaid by the Authority from revenues as they become

available.

ARTICLE VII - COSTS

Shared Costs. All costs which were properly budgeted and which were incurred by the
Authority in connection with the operation of the Redwood Transit System, less fare box
revenues and other sources of funds, shall be shared by the parties on the following basis:
County fifty percent (50%) and participating cities fifty percent (50%). The portion to be paid
by each city shall be determined by its population relative to the other participating cities, as
shown by the latest U.S. Census or by another source of official population data designated by
the Governing Board. In the event that the population of the unincorporated area of the County
increases or decreases five percent (5%) or more from such population as shown by the 1980
U.S. Census, the cost sharing formula provided for herein shall, on request of any party hereto,
be renegotiated among the parties to more accurately reflect their respective populations.

Non-Shared Costs. The Authority and any party hereto may enter into a contract for transit
services to be provided by the Authority which are not otherwise provided for in the budget
adopted by the Authority for operation of the Redwood Transit System. Any costs incurred by
the Authority in providing such contract services shall be the sole responsibility of the party
requesting such services, and the terms of payment and other terms for the provision of such

services shall be as provided in said contract.

Source of Funds. Each party hereto shall individually determine whether to pay its share of
the costs determined in accordance with Sections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Article from Mills-

Alquist-Deddeh Act allocations or from other appropriate fund.
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ARTICLE VIII - ADDITIONAL MEMBERS

8.1. Additional Members. Additional general purpose governments within the County may
become parties to this Agreement on approval of the parties hereto and on such terms and
conditions as are mutually agreed upon. Any new member will be represented on the Board by
the addition of one (1) member and one (1) alternate, as provided in Section 3.2 hereof.

ARTICLE IX - TERMINATION

9 .1. Term. This Agreement shall become effective on the date first above written and shall
continue in effect until rescinded or terminated by agreement of the parties.

9.2. Disposition of Assets. On the termination of this Agreement, all surplus money of the
Authority shall be returned to the parties hereto in proportion to the contributions each made.

All other property of the Authority, both real and personal, shall be divided in a manner agreed
upon by the parties.

ARTICLE X - WITHDRAWAL

10.1. Withdrawal. Any member may withdraw from this Agreement by sending written notice of
such decision to all other parties hereto. Such notice will become effective only at the end of

the full fiscal year next commencing after the date the notice is given, unless the notice is
earlier rescinded. The giving of such notice does not relieve such party from its obligations

hereunder prior to the effective date of such notice.

ARTICLE XI - MISCELLANEOUS

11.1. Notices. Notices required to be given hereunder shall be delivered to:
Arcata: City Manager, City of Arcata, 736 “F” Street, Arcata, California 95521.
Fortuna: City Manager, City of Fortuna, City Hall, Fortuna, California 95 540.
Eureka: City Manager, City of Eureka, City Hall, Eureka, California 95501.
Rio Dell: City Clerk, City of Rio Dell, 125 Wildwood Drive, Rio Dell, California 95562.
Trinidad: City Clerk, City of Trinidad, Drawer "N", Trinidad, California 95570.

County: County Administrative Officer, County of Humboldt, Courthouse, Eureka, California
95501.

11.2. Headings. The section headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not to be
construed as modifying or governing the language in the sections so headed.
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11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

11.7.

Consent. Whenever in this Agreement any consent or approval is required, the same shall not
be unreasonably withheld.

Law Governing. This Agreement is made in the State of California and is to be construed in
accordance with the laws thereof.

Partial Invalidity. If any of the terms, provisions, sections, promises or conditions of this
Agreement be to any extent adjudged invalid, unenforceable, void or voidable for any reason
whatsoever, by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms provisions, sections,
promises and conditions shall not be affected thereby; and shall be valid and enforceable to the
fullest extent permitted by law.

Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the

successors of the parties.

Counterparts. This Agreement amendment may be executed by the parties hereto in
counterparts it not being necessary that all of the parties hereto execute the same copy hereof,

and each counterpart so executed shall be deemed a duplicate original and of full and binding

force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Members of the Humboldt Transit Authority have approved this
Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement and execute this Agreement as of the dates written below.

(Signatures on following pages)
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CITY OF ARCATA

By:

, Mayor
Attest:
By:

, City Clerk
CITY OF EUREKA
By:

, Mayor
Attest:
By:

, City Clerk
CITY OF FORTUNA
By:

, Mayor
Attest:
By:

, City Clerk
CITY OF RIO DELL
By:

, Mayor
Attest:
By:

, City Clerk

HUMBOLDT TRANSIT AUTHORITY
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, AMENDED AND RESTATED

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:
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CITY OF TRINIDAD

By:

, Mayor

Attest:

By:

, City Clerk

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT

By:
, Chair of the Board

Attest:

By:

, Clerk of the Board

HUMBOLDT TRANSIT AUTHORITY
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, AMENDED AND RESTATED

Dated:

Dated:
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June 25, 2020

TO: Kyle Knopp (City Manager/Director of Emergency Services)

FROM: - Mayor Debra Garnes

REGARDING:  Temporary Designation of Place of City Council Meetings

Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 authorize a
local legislative body to hold public meetings via teleconferencing and to make public
meetings accessible telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the
public seeking to observe and to address the local legislative body and waives in-person
accessibility for Council meetings during the State of Emergency related to COVID-19.

Rio Dell Municipal Code Section 2.05.040 authorizes the Mayor of the City of Rio
Dell, when by reason of emergency it is unsafe to meet at City Hall, to designate such
other place and time for City Council meetings to be held for the duration of the

emergency.

In accordance with Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 and Rio Dell

Municipal Code Section 2.05.040, I hereby designate the location of City Council
meetings to be via teleconference through Zoom effective immediately, and continuing
only until such time as the state or local public health officials no longer impose or

recommend social distancing measures.

.)_
Dated: 7/,,!’4//;(/ =25, 2020

P4
/
Vs
L

Approved as to Form:

Débra Garnes Mé})or

_,_—-”

iy A

Kyle} Iir}a‘pp, City Manage}/Dlrector of

P g
Dated: ~— S Loree &5 2020

Ercrgg cy Services”
. /, / / - \"\\
Dated: & /Z2¢ , 2020 ) o e O

' Russell Ga/ns, Clty Attorney

7
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Staff Update — 2020-07-07

City Council

A statewide Public Service Announcement produced by the League of California Cities featured
the Mayor Debra Garnes. The video, which centers on the topic of COVID-19 is titled “Dear
California, We Will Emerge Even Stronger, Together” and also features mayors from other
California cities like Mayor Darryl Steinberg of Sacramento and Mayor Libby Schaaf of
Oakland. The PSA can be viewed here: https://youtu.be/gojS3 7vpDQ

Also, the Mayor was featured recently on the COVID Minute, describing the Rio Dell COVID-19
Volunteer Corp. That can be viewed here: https://youtu.be/kNs1ZN9vp50

City Manager

There have been some email exchanges Re: the connection of the Scotia wastewater collection
system with the Rio Dell wastewater plant. However, the information exchange has been light.
Staff will be recommending that the City Council issue a letter on this subject at the next regular

meeting.

Final preparation for slurry seal work — expected to begin in the second half of July.
Bid requests issued for new PD and PW vehicles.

Street sweeping scheduled for July 17

Weed abatement code enforcement letters issued.

Final stages in CEQA for water system capital improvements.

Meeting with Tesla over energy storage and solar options.

At the next regular meeting of the City Council, staff will be bringing forward an item for Council
approval to accept the deed of a property involved in foreclosure. The property received a
CDBG home improvement loan secured with a Deed of Trust to the city.

City Clerk

-29-




Processed five (5) Building Permits

289 Berkeley St. — Water Heater
219 Ogle Ave. — Re-Roof Residence & Shop
529 Third Ave. — Residential Remodel
188 Douglas St. — Siding on Garage
917 Martin Dr. — Sewer Lateral

Processed three (3) Business License Applications

American Chimney — Non-Resident Contractor
Collins Electric — Non-Resident Contractor
Nick Bartlett Landscaping — Lawn & Garden

Misc.

Completed Candidate Information Packet for November 3, 2020 City Council

election.
Submitted Employment Data Report for June

Sent out 13 Nuisance Abatement Letters (Tall grass & weeds)

City Attorney

Human Resources, Risk & Training

Finance Department

Public Works Water

Public Works Wastewater

105 S. Fern St. Sewer main repair. Worked with Hooven Construction to repair a broken sewer
main in the road, before the paving project was finished.

Respiratory Protection Program with public works staff.

Starting the Chloramine bench testing with Waste water staff for SSES
Forklift certification and Fit testing for the staff.

Plant wash down and Contact basin cleaning.

Help utilities Staff with city wide weeding eating.
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Electrician install separate power meter for Water plant.

Continuing work on the Sewer collection GIS.

Repair Chlorine Storage tanks.

Quarterly state reporting for NPDES permit.

Public Works Streets, Buildings and Grounds

Public Works City Engineer

Public Works Capital Projects

Police Department

The Department had the following statistics for the period of June 10, 2020 to June 30, 2020. This
period of time saw a significantly higher than average number of calls for service and reports, and an
average number of arrests compared to last year. The increase in calls for service, reports and arrests
during the shelter in place order suggests that a portion of the community is no longer abiding by the
order and may be taking advantage of the jail not being able to accept prisoners for most crimes. There
has also been an increase in the number of property crimes. The summation of Calls for Service may
greater than the total as multiple officers can now be assigned to the same call for service. There may

also be administrative calls for service that are not documented below.

Officer Calls for Service Reports Arrests
Conner 57 11 4
Beauchaine 49 2 0
Landry 111 16 6
Mitchell 108 14 5
Burns 22 0} 0
Fielder 77 2 1
Totals 354 45 16
Averages 16.9 per day 15.0 per week 5.3 per week
2019 Yearly Average 6.4 per day 10.3 per week 4.6 per week
Calls or Service at 355 Center Street
[Type ~ Date | Time | location | Primary | Case#
415 06/10/2020  08:57:04 355 CENTER ST 6A1
415N 06/12/2020  01:45:38 355 CENTER ST R613
415 06/16/2020  01:12:15 355 CENTER ST R614
Vi 06/17/2020  22:29:59 355 CENTER ST R613 20-0000264
415 06/19/2020  11:17:30 355 CENTER ST 651
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5150 06/21/2020 16:28:40 355 CENTER ST 6A1 20-0000271

CIviLP 06/21/2020 17:00:01 355 CENTER ST R613
415 06/23/2020 16:08:10 355 CENTER ST
FU 06/30/2020 18:39:10 355 CENTER ST 651

FU — Follow up or uncharacterized contact
VI — Parked vehicle investigation

CivilP — Civil problem or issue

415 — Generic disturbance

415N — Loud noise/music

5150 — Mental health issue

CL613 — Officer Crystal Landry
R0O02 — Sergeant John Beauchaine
R0O07 — Chief Jeff Conner

LM614 - Officer Logan Mitchell
6RICF — Officer Charlie Fielder

During the period June 10, 2020, to June 30, 2020, there were twenty-one calls for service related to
animal control issues. Two dogs, five cats/kittens and a tortoise were transported to Miranda’s Rescue.
All of the felines were feral and were trapped at a house on Third Avenue where the owner passed
away. The tortoise was featured on Lost Coast Outpost and was returned to her owner the following

day.

On June 12, 2020, Officer Landry stopped a man who had just punched the mirror in one of the Shell
Station’s bathrooms. This caused a significant laceration to the man’s hand. Officer Landry observed
that he had a serious laceration on his other hand also. The man explained that he had been slashed by
a man with a razor before going to the gas station. Medical personnel were summoned to assist the
man with his injuries and he was cited for vandalism. Officer Landry followed the blood trail left by the
man and learned that an altercation may have taken place on Rigby. However, neither the victim or the
other man involved would cooperate and the case has been suspended. The Department received calls
the next morning about the drops of blood that were found in several parts of town.

On June 23, 2020, Chief Conner and Officer Fielder responded to a residence on Painter Street where a
man was allegedly brandishing a shotgun at two other persons. When the officers arrived, they called
the occupants of the house out. All three persons were intoxicated and it was difficult to obtain an
accurate narrative of what had occurred. It appeared that an argument had taken place between the
two men. The woman present was the mother of the younger of the two men. His father had recently
passed away and the young man had taken solace in a bottle. As his mother tried to calm him down, the
older man had brandished a BB gun at them. The BB gun was seized for safekeeping and the parties
were separated and advised to sleep off their intoxication. However, a short time later, the young man
returned to this location and became involved in a physical fight with the older man. He was arrested

for public intoxication and transported to jail.

Code Enforcement
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During the period of June 10, 2020 through June 30, 2020, the Department opened five new junk vehicle
cases. During the same time period, the Department closed six cases. Three of these vehicles were
moved/removed by the owners, two were towed by the City and the remaining case was closed for
administrative purposes. There were six open cases at the end of the time period that this report

covers.

During the period of June 10, 2020, to June 30, 2020, the Department opened two new code
enforcement cases. One case on Ogle was for barking dogs and the other was on Ireland for junk cars
and solid waste. The Department closed twelve cases in this time period. All of the violations in these
cases were cleared by the actions of the property owners and/or occupants. A Notice to Correct and
two Notice of Violation were served. There were 48 open cases at the end of this reporting period.

Community Development Department

Intergovernmental

Humboldt-Rio Dell Business Park
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675 Wildwood Avenue CITy OF
Rio Dell, CA 95562 M
(707) 764-3532 QRI_Q 3

(707) 764-5480 (fax) D

EL
July 7, 2020 K™
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Kyle Knopp, City Manager
FROM: Cheryl Dillingham, Interim Finance Director

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2018-19 Audited Financial Statements

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Receive presentation by JJA CPA, Inc. on the City’s audited financial statements and
accompanying information.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:

Each year an independent auditing firm audits and prepares financial statements for the City of
Rio Dell in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Standards (GAAP) and the
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that an audit be performed to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

The City received an unqualified opinion and no material weaknesses were identified. An
unqualified opinion means that the auditor has concluded the financial statements present fairly
the results of the City’s operations and its financial position according to generally accepted
accounting principles. A material weakness is one or more deficiencies in internal control where
a reasonable possibility exists that a material misstatement will not be prevented, detected, or
corrected in a timely manner. The auditor found no such weaknesses.

The auditing firm of JJA CPA, Inc. will present to Council the Fiscal year 2018-19 audited
Financial Statements and accompanying information.

ATTACHMENTS:

Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

-34-




CITY OF RIO DELL, CALIFORNIA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 30,2019

CITY OF

| CALIFORNA

Prepared by:

Cheryl Dillingham

Finance Director
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Rio Dell
Rio Dell, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparison information of the City of Rio Dell,
California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund
information, and the budgetary comparison information of the City, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

7080 Donlon Way, Suite 204, Dublin, CA 94568 e phone (925) 556-6200 e fax: (5 10) 217-5930
1102 South Main Street, #1, Fort Bragg, CA 95437 e phone (707) 964-6325
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To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
The City of Rio Dell

Rio Dell, California

Page 2

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis on pages 316 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the introductory
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements is fairly stated, in all material respects, in

relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 22, 2020 on our
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City’s internal control over financial

reporting and compliance.

FIYETH S

June 22, 2020 JJACPA, Inc.
Dublin, CA
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

This section provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Rio
Dell (City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. It should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying transmittal letter and basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

This section of the annual financial report provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the City of Rio Dell (City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. It should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying transmittal letter and basic financial statements.

The following outlines the financial highlights for the year:

¢ At June 30, 2019, the City’s net position (excess of assets and deferred outflows of resources of
the City over liabilities and deferred inflows of resources) was $28,335,902, an increase of
$878,547 from the prior year. Of the total net position, $21,207,243 was invested in capital
assets (net of related debt) and $350,064 had restrictions in their use leaving $6,778,595 as

unrestricted.

+ Overall City-wide revenues from all governmental and business-type activities decreased by
$574,177 compared to FY 2017-18. The decrease resulted from the elimination of one-time
revenues from grant funding for the Metropolitan Wells Project. The City’s total expenses for
all programs in FY 2018-19 increased by $22,227 or less than 1%.

+ Overall the City’s total net position increased by $878,547 ($579,917 and $298,630 for
governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively). Total city-wide assets
increased $617,846. This primarily was the result of an increase in cash.

¢ The General Fund reported a fund balance of $2,020,921 at the end of the 2019 fiscal year, an
increase of $324,662. This increase resulted from higher than anticipated Sales Tax and
Measure U revenues and new Cannabis revenues. There was also significant budgetary

savings in the General Fund due to vacant positions in the Police Department.

¢ The City also ended the fiscal year with $3,470,160 reported in the proprietary enterprise funds
(the amount of net position available for use, including unrestricted net position, but excluding
the investment in capital assets net of related debt). This is an increase of $496,761 from 2018
and is a result of unrestricted water funds increasing by $371,835 to $1,675,908 and

unrestricted sewer funds increasing by $124,926 to $1,794,252.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

The Basic Financial Statements

The Basic Financial Statements are comprised of the Government-wide Financial Statements and the
Fund Financial Statements; these two sets of financial statements provide two different views of the

City’s financial activities and financial position.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financial Statements provide a broad overview of the City’s activities as a
whole and are comprised of the Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities. The
Statement of Net position provides information about the financial position of the City as a whole,
including all its capital assets and long-term liabilities on the full accrual basis, similar to that used by
private sector entities. The Statement of Activities provides information about all the City’s revenues
and all its expenses, also on the full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measuring net revenues or
expenses of each the City’s programs. The Statement of Activities explains in detail the change in Net

position for the year.

All of the City’s activities are grouped into Governmental Activities and Business-type activities, as
explained below. All the amounts in the Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities are
separated into Governmental Activities and Business-type Activities in order to provide a summary of

these two activities of the City as a whole.

Government-wide financial statements, prepared on the accrual basis, measure the flow of all
economic resources of the City. There are two basic statements presented here: the Statement of Net
Position and Statement of Activities. These statements present information about the following

activities.

¢ Governmental activities — All of the City’s basic services are considered to be governmental
activities, including general government, community development, parks and recreation, public
safety, animal control, engineering, community events, public improvements, planning and zoning,
building inspections, and general administration. These services are supported by general City

revenues such as taxes and by specific program revenues such as developer fees.

Business-type activities — All the City’s enterprise activities are reported here, including Water and
Sewer. Unlike governmental services, these services are supported by charges paid by users based

on the amount of the service they use.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT, Continued

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the
Government-wide Financial Statements, Governmental Fund Financial Statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term

financing requirements.

Because the focus of the Governmental Fund Financial Statements is narrower than that of the
Government-wide Financial Statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the Government-
wide Financial Statement. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
The Governmental Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about each of the City’s
most significant funds, called major funds. The concept of major funds, and the determination of which
are major funds, was established by GASB Statement No. 34 and replaces the concept of combining
like funds and presenting them as one total. Instead, each major fund is presented individually, with all
nonmajor funds summarized and presented only in a single column. Subordinate schedules present the
detail of these nonmajor funds. Major funds present the major activities of the City for the year, and
may change from year to year as a result of changes in the pattern of the City’s activities.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City’s major funds are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:

¢ General Fund
¢ CDBG Special Revenue Fund
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT, Continued
Fund Financial Statements, Continued

PROPRIETARY FUNDS:

¢ Water Enterprise Fund
¢ Sewer Enterprise Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City adopted annual appropriated budgets for all
governmental funds.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains Enterprise-type funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements.
The City uses enterprise funds to account for Water and Sewer activities. The proprietary fund

financial statements provide separate information for all of these operations.

Fiduciary Statements

The City’s fiduciary activities are reported in the separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. These
activities are excluded from the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot use these
assets to finance its own operations. The fiduciary statements provide financial information about the
activities of special deposits for which the City acts solely as an agent. They provide information

about the cash balances and activities of these funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can

be found on pages 41-70 of this report.
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are
presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund

statements can be found on pages 74—86 of this report.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $28,335,902 as of June 30, 2019. The

Summary of Net position as of June 30, 2019, and 2018, follows:

Summary of Net Position
2019 2018
Govern- Business- Govern- Business-
mental type mental type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Current and other assets $ 3,775,656 $ 4,063,188 $ 7,838,844 §$ 3362354 $ 3,529955 § 6,892,309

Noncurrent assets 4,801,171 23,300,011 28,101,182 4,619,906 23,809,965 28,429,871
Total assets 8,576,827 27,363,199 35,940,026 7,982,260 27,339,920 35,322,180
Current and other liabilities 8,447 560,790 569,237 82,539 536,506 619,045
Long-term liabilities 32,710 6,926,177 6,958,887 19,968 7,225,812 7,245,780
Total liabilities ' 41,157 7,486,967 7,528,124 102,507 7,762,318 7,864,825
Net position:

Net invested in

Capital Assets 4,801,171 16,406,072 21,207,243 4,619,906 16,604,203 21,224,109

350,064 - 350,064 271,863 - 271,863

Restricted
Unrestricted 3,308,435 3,470,160 6,778,595 2,987,984 2,973,399 5,961,383
Total net position $ 8459,670 § 19,876,232 $ 28335902 § 7,879,753 § 19,577,602 $ 27,457,355

The City’s total net position increased by $878,547 ($579,917 and $298,630 for governmental
activities and business-type activities, respectively). Total city-wide assets increased $617,846. This
primarily was the result of an increase in cash. Total city-wide liabilities, not including deferred
outflows and inflows of resources, decreased by $336,701 from both current and non-current
categories. Debt service principle (long-term liabilities) for the wastewater treatment plant and the

water system infiltration gallery decreased $299,635.

Slightly more than 1% or $350,064 of City-wide net position represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining unrestricted net position of $6.8 million
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Of this amount,
$3,308,435 is held by governmental activities and $3,470,160 is held by business-type activities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Revenues

The City’s total revenues for governmental and business-type activities were $4,864,926 for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019, a decrease of $574,177. Significant revenues for the City for fiscal year
2018-19 were derived from taxes (26%), operating grants and contributions (11%), and charges for

services (53%).
The following discusses variances in key revenues from the prior fiscal year:

¢ Charges for Services - Annual receipts for business-type activities increased $150,587, or
6%. Governmental activities increased $63,876, primarily due to building for fees for a

new multi-unit housing project.

¢ Grants and Contributions - Annual receipts decreased by $1,059,114. This was due to
funding received in the prior year for the Metropolitan Well project and CDBG funds for
ADA improvements to City Hall.

¢ Other Taxes - Annual receipts increased $33,868. This represents revenues from the new

cannabis tax.

Expenses

Governmental and business-type activity expenses of the City for the year totaled $3,986,379. This is
an increase of $23,469 from the prior fiscal year. Governmental activity expenses totaled $1,343,563,
or 34% of total expenses. Business-type activities incurred $2,642,816 of expenses during the fiscal
year, and increase of $200,870 used mainly for capital project costs. Public safety - Police costs
represented 50% of total governmental activities expenses, followed by General Government activities
(29%) and Planning and Public Works (16%). The remaining 5% were Building and Recycling costs.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

The change in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, and 2018, follows:

Changes in Net Position
2019 2018
Govern- Business- Govern- Business-
mental type mental type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 164419 § 2439841 $ 2604260 § 100,543 $ 2289254 § 2389797
Grants and contributions:
Operating 359,377 - 359,377 563,462 - 563,462
Capital 8,851 188,036 196,887 - 1,051,916 1,051,916
General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for
general purposes 127,913 - 127,913 124,476 - 124,476
Sales taxes 486,594 - 486,594 497,140 - 497,140
Transient occupancy tax 9,328 - 9,328 13,857 - 13,857
Gas taxes 144,878 - 144,878 72,769 - 72,769
Franchise taxes 88,045 - 88,045 85,790 - 85,790
Other taxes 33,868 33,868 - - -
Motor vehicle in lieu 384,193 - 384,193 383,159 - 383,159
Use of money and property 64,031 44,130 108,161 22,674 776 23,450
Contributed capital - 207,471 207,471 - 205,353 205,353
Other general 46,149 67,802 113,951 8,640 19,294 27,934
Total revenues 1,917,646 2,947,280 4,864,926 1,872,510 3,566,593 5,439,103
Expenses:
Govemnmental activities:
General government 391,694 - 391,694 565,721 - 565,721
Public safety - Police 669,547 - 669,547 640,143 - 640,143
Planning and Public works 214,838 - 214,838 241,873 - 241,873
Building 59,994 - 59,994 66,979 - 66,979
Recycling 7,490 - 7,490 6,248
Business-type activities:
Water - 1,542,953 1,542,953 - 1,624,225 1,624,225
Wastewater - 1,099,863 1,099,863 - 817,721 817,721
Total expenses 1,343,563 2,642,816 3,986,379 1,520,964 2,441,946 3,956,662
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures before transfers 574,083 304,464 878,547 351,546 1,124,647 1,476,193
Transfers 5,834 (5,834) - - - -
Change in net position 579,917 298,630 878,547 351,546 1,124,647 1,476,193
Net position:
Beginning of year 7,879,753 19,577,602 27,457,355 7,528,207 18,452,955 25,981,162
End of year $ 8459670 $ 19876232 $§ 28335902 § 7,879,753 $ 19577602 $ 27457355
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Governmental Activities

ost of each of the City’s major programs and the net cost of the

The following table shows the c
e activities. The

programs. Net cost is the total cost less fees and other direct revenue generated by th
net cost reflects the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of the programs.
The total cost of services and the net cost of services for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, and

2018, are as follows:

2019 2018

Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost

of Services of Services of Services of Services
General government $ 391,694 $ 272,427 $ 565,721 $ 374,608
Public safety - Police 669,547 520,800 640,143 500,727
Planning and public works 214,838 (49,795) 241,873 (91,603)
Building 59,994 59,994 66,979 66,979
Recycling 7,490 7,490 6,248 6,248
Total $ 1,343,563 $ 810,916 $ 1,520,964 $ 856,959

Expenses for governmental activities were $1,343,563 which was $177,401 or 12% lower than the
prior year. During FY 2018 City Hall had an architectural barrier removal project for ADA

improvements, which resulted in higher expenditures in comparison to 2019.

10
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Governmental Activities, continued
Revenues by source for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, and 2018, are as follows:

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 2019

Use of money and Other general,
property, $64,031, $46,149 ,2.4%
33%

Motor vehicle in lieu,
$384193,200% N\
Other taxes, $33,868
,1.8% \

Franchise taxes, _—"

$88,045 ,4.6%

Charges for services,
$164,419 , 8.6%

Operating grants,
$359,377, 18.7%

Capital grants,
$8,851,0.5%

Property taxes,

Gas taxes, $144,878,
$127,913,6.7%

7.6%

Sales tax, $486,594,

Transient Occupancy
25.4%

Tax, $9,328,0.5%

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 2018

Other general,
Use of money and $8,640, 0.5%

property, $22,674,
12% T Sme

Motor vehicle in lieu,
$383.159,20.5% T~

Charges for services,
$100,543 , 5.4%

Operating grants,
$563,462 ,30.1%

Franchise taxes, —____
$85,790 , 4.6%

Gas taxes, $72,769, /

3.9%

\ Property taxes,

$124,476 , 6.6%

Transient Occupancy
Tax, $13,857,0.7%

Sales tax, $497,140,
26.5%
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities have increased the City’s net position by $298,630. The City has two business-
type activities: Sewer and Water Operations. The operating revenues and expenses for the business-
type activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, and 2018, are as follows:

Operating Revenues and Expenses
Business-type Activities
2019

$2,000,000 -

$1,500,000 - # Operating

- — N revenues
$1,000,000 - - - wOperating
= expenses

$500,000 -

$ I
Sewer Water
Operating Revenues and Expenses
Business-type Activities
2018
$2,500000 ©
$2,000,000
“ Operating
$1,500,000 revenues
4 “ Operating
$1,000,000 i
$500,000
$-

Sewer Water
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Business-type Activities, continued

The revenues by source for the business-type activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, and

2018, are as follows:
Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities 2019
Other general

revenues, $67,802,
2%

Contributed capital,
$207,471, 7%

Investment earnings, _/ -
$44,130, 2% /
Capital Grants and

contributions,
$188,036, 6%

Charges for services,
$2,439,841, 83%

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities 2018

Other general
revenues, $19,294,
1%

~

Contributed capital,
$205,353,6%

Investment earnings, _/

$776 , 0%

Charges for services,
$2,289,254 , 64%

Capital grants and____
contributions,
$1,051,916, 29%
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

The City of Rio Dell uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City government,
reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental funds. The City’s governmental funds provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spending resources. At the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City’s
governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $2,687,353. This is an increase of $555,647
or 25% from last year. This primarily results from revenues exceeding expenditures in the various

governmental funds.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019,
General Fund unassigned fund balance totaled $1,992,249. This is an increase of $418,501 from the
prior year. This increase resulted from higher than anticipated sales and cannabis tax revenues, as well

as significant budgetary savings primarily due to vacant positions.

The governmental funds allowed the City to undertake several capital and special projects in FY 2018-
19. The State provided funds through the Active Transportation Program (ATP) which will enhance
non-motorized user safety on city streets. ATP funding is meant to encourage increased use of active
modes of transportation. This project is anticipated to start construction in FY 2019-20. The General

Fund subsidized street maintenance and Habitat for Humanity projects.

d the fiscal year with $3,470,160 reported in the proprietary

Proprietary funds. The City ende
icted net position, but

enterprise funds (the amount of net position available for use, including unrestr
excluding the investment in capital assets net of related debt). This is an increase of $496,761 from

2018. The increase is a result of the change in net position in the water funds of $371,835 and
$124,926 in the sewer funds.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The difference between the final budget and actual revenues differs favorably by $225,256, or 21%
over budgeted amounts. This was mainly due to increased retail sales tax and Measure U revenue.
Actual expenditures were $497,294 lower than final budgeted amounts. The lower expenditures were

largely due to vacant positions in the Police Department.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

There was a $106,393 difference between the total original expenditure budget and the total final
amended budget. Actual expenditures in comparison to the final budget were $1,630,024 under budget
(27% under budget). This resulted primarily from unspent capital outlay appropriations for several

projects.

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2019, amount to $28,101,182. This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress,
streets, medians, sidewalks, buildings, water and sewer infrastructure, machinery, equipment, and

vehicles.

Govermnmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Land $ 627,945 § 627,945 § 507,859 § 507,859 § 1,135,804 § 1,135,804
Construction in progress 183,295 - - 1,998,049 183,295 1,998,049
Buildings and structures 302,953 308,683 18,283 26,881 321,236 335,564
Equipment 19,683 23,968 249,355 267,918 269,038 291,886
Vehicles 17,833 80,442 95,084 - 112,917 80,442
Streets and roads 1,754,723 1,636,003 - - 1,754,723 1,636,003
Infrastructures 1,894,739 1,942,865 22,429,430 21,009,258 24,324,169 22,952,123

Total $ 4801171 § 4619906 § 23300011 §$ 235809965 _§ 28,101,182 § 28,429,871

More detail of the capital assets and current activity can be found in the notes to the financial
statements on page 47 for significant accounting policies and Note 5 on pages 57 — 58 for other capital

asset information.

Long-Term Debt

At June 30, 2019, the City had $7,277,926 in long-term liabilities. Additional information about the
City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 to the basic financial statements.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Compensated absences. $ 36,344 § 22,187 § 35,820 $ 22278  § 72,164 $ 44,465
Safe Drinking Water Loan - - 1,428,000 1,564,000 1,428,000 1,564,000
FMHA Special Assessment Bonds - - - 30,000 - 30,000
State of California Water
Resouces Control Board - 5,777,762 5,949,800 5,777,762 5,949,800

Total $ 36344 $ 22187 § 7,241,582 § 7,566,078 _§ 7,277,926 $ 7,588,265
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Economic Outlook and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

The budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20, adopted on June 18, 2019, is balanced and the economic outlook
for the near term is considered stable. The overall stabilization is a result of a continuing and reliable
tax base, a lack of pension debt and utility rates that adequately meet operating and capital costs and

the City’s efforts over the past several years to contain and control expenditures.

Tax revenues, particularly property and sales taxes, continue to be steady through economic cycles
which provides stability to the City’s financial position. These revenues have increased modestly since
the Great Recession in 2008. In addition, the City’s tax revenue base was broadened with the passage
of Measure U in 2014, the City’s 1% add-on tax. Measure U expires in 2020 and thanks to community

support Measure J was passed and extends the sales tax through 2024.

Measure X, the City’s business tax on medical and recreational marijuana was voted in on November
7, 2017. Measure X allows for commercial production and sales of cannabis at the City’s industrial
zone at Metropolitan Avenue. Maintaining and growing the City’s revenue base continues to be a high

priority.

The City’s traditional revenue base is not keeping up with expenses. Salary and benefits costs are the
largest expense category and it has become a challenge to provide salaries that are competitive enough
to recruit and retain qualified employees. Additionally, costs for other services continue to rise such as
dispatch, information systems and animal control. It is anticipated that the cost of doing business will

continue to increase.

It has been over five years since a rate study has been done for sewer and water services. The budget
contains funding for a new rate study. Regulatory oversight, capital planning and replacement and
employee retention are factors contributing to the need for a rate review and update.

In summary, the City enters FY 2019-20 in a positive financial position due to past efforts made to
stabilize both revenues and expenditures. The budget for FY 2019-20 invests in services, maintains
reserves and there is the possibility of increased cannabis tax revenue. While vulnerabilities exist,
some within the City’s control and some not, the City believes it has taken, and will continue to take,

the actions necessary to create a sustainable financial future.

Requests for Information

This Annual Financial Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances. If you have any questions about this report, or need additional
financial information contact the City of Rio Dell Finance Department, 675, Rio Dell, CA 95562.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Statement of Net Position
June 30,2019

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments

Receivables:

Accounts
Intergovernmental
Interest

Loans/Notes receivable

Prepaid items
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Deposits payable
Compensated absences - current portion
Due within one year
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences
Due after one year
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and

net position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ 2,263,624 $ 3,531,170 5,794,794
475,243 277,486 752,729
- 174,395 174,395
- 12,137 12,137
1,008,117 - 1,008,117
28,672 68,000 96,672
3,775,656 4,063,188 7,838,844
811,240 2,505,908 3,317,148
3,989,931 20,794,103 24,784,034
4,801,171 23,300,011 28,101,182
$ 8,576,827 $ 27,363,199 35,940,026
$ 80,813 $ 76,163 156,976
i 84,740 84,740
- 84,482 84,482
3,634 3,582 7,216
- 311,823 311,823
84,447 560,790 645,237
32,710 32,238 64,948
- 6,893,939 6,893,939
32,710 6,926,177 6,958,887
117,157 7,486,967 7,604,124
4,801,171 16,406,072 21,207,243
350,064 - 350,064
3,308,435 3,470,160 6,778,595
8,459,670 19,876,232 28,335,902
$ 8,576,827 $ 27,363,199 35,940,026

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Govemnmental activities:
General government $ 391,694 35,308 83,959 $ -
Public safety - Police 669,547 - 148,747 -
Planning and public works 214,838 129,111 126,671 8,851
Building 59,994 - - -
Recycling 7,490 - = -
Total governmental activities 1,343,563 164,419 359,377 8,851
Business-type activities:
Sewer 1,542,953 1,437,910 - -
Water 1,099,863 1,001,931 - 188,036
Total business-type activities 2,642,816 2,439,841 - 188,036
Total primary government $ 3,986,379 2,604,260 $ 359,377 $ 196,887

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes

Sales taxes

Transient occupancy taxes

Gas taxes

Franchise taxes

Other taxes

Intergovernmental:

State motor vehicle in-lieu tax (MVLF)

Use of money and property
Contributed capital

Other general revenues

Total general revenues

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position:

Beginning of year

End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
$ (272,427) $ - (272,427)
(520,800) - (520,800)
49,795 - 49,795
(59,994) - (59,994)
(7,490) - (7,490)
(810,916) - (810,916)
= (105,043) (105,043)
. 90,104 90,104
- (14,939) (14,939)
(810,916) (14,939) (825,855)
127,913 - 127,913
486,594 - 486,594
9,328 - 9,328
144,878
88,045 - 88,045
33,868 - 33,868
384,193 572,229
64,031 44,130 108,161
- 207,471 207,471
46,149 67,802 113,951
1,384,999 319,403 1,704,402
5,834 (5,834) :
1,390,833 313,569 1,704,402
579,917 298,630 878,547
7,879,753 19,577,602 27,457,355
8,459,670 $ 19,876,232 28,335,902
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAJOR FUNDS

Fund Description

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used for taxes and grants.

Primary operating fund of the City; accounts for all activities
except those legally or administratively required to be accounted

for in other funds.

General

CDBG Housing Special Revenue Accounts for activities related to housing and the related CDBG

funding.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Receivables:
Interest
Intergovernmental
Loans/Notes receivable
Other receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Due to other funds
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources:

Total Liabilities and deferred inflows

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted

Assigned
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and

fund balances

Major Funds
Nonmajor
General CDBG Governmental

Fund Special Revenue Funds Totals
$ 1,621,756 $ 137,035 $ 504,833 $ 2,263,624
5,542 - 1,742 7,284
- - 31,008 31,008
- 1,008,117 - 1,008,117
363,262 - 73,689 436,951
79,718 - - 79,718
28,672 - - 28,672
$ 2,098,950 $ 1,145,152 $ 611,272 $ 3,855,374
$ 78,029 $ - 3 2,784  $ 80,813
- - 79,718 79,718
78,029 - 82,502 160,531
- 1,007,490 - 1,007,490
- 1,007,490 - 1,007,490
78,029 1,007,490 82,502 1,168,021
28,672 - - 28,672
- 137,662 212,402 350,064
- - 318,129 318,129
1,992,249 - (1,761) 1,990,488
2,020,921 137,662 528,770 2,687,353
$ 2,098,950 $ 1,145,152 $ 611,272 $ 3,855,374

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

Total fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are

different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance

sheet.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Compensated absences

Governmental funds notes receivable from various loan programs are
deferred under the current financial resources measurement focus. The notes
receivable are recognized in the government-wide Statement of Net Position

under the accrual basis of accounting.

Net Position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

$ 2,687,353
4,801,171
(36,344)
1,007,490
§ 8,459,670
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City of Rio Dell, California

Reconciliation of Fund Basis Balance Sheet to Government-wide Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities
June 30, 2019

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Interest
Intergovernmental
Loans/Notes receivable
Other receivable
Prepaid items
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources:

Pension Plan
Total assets and deferred outflows of recources

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Compensated absences - current portion
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue
Total liabities and deferred inflows of resources:
FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION
Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned (deficit)
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total fund balances/net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position

Govemnmental
Funds Changes Statement of
Balance Sheet Reclassifications in GAAP Net Position
5 2263624 § - $ - 5 2,263,624
7,284 - - 7,284
31,008 - - * 31,008
1,008,117 - - 1,008,117
436,951 - - 436,951
28,672 - - 28,672
3,855,374 (79,718) - 3,775,656
- - 4,801,171 4,801,171
- - 4,801,171 4,801,171
3,855,374 (79,718) 4,801,171 8,576,827
$ 3,855,374 $ (79,718) § 4,801,171 $ 8,576,827
$ 80,813 $ - 8 - $ 80,813
79,718 (79,718) - -
- - 3,634 3,634
160,531 (79,718) 3,634 84,447
- - 32,710 32,710
- - 32,710 32,710
160,531 (79,718) 36,344 117,157
1,007,490 - (1,007,490) -
1,168,021 (79,718) (971,146) 117,157
28,672 (28,672) - -
350,064 (350,064) - -
318,129 (318,129) - -
1,990,488 (1,990,488) - -
- - 4,801,171 4,801,171
- - 350,064 350,064
- 2,687,353 621,082 3,308,435
2,687,353 - 5,772,317 8,459,670
$ 3,855,374 $ (79,718) § 4,801,171 § 8,576,827

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30,2019

Major Funds
Other
General CDBG Governmental
Fund Special Revenue Funds Totals
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ 161,781  § - $ - 8 161,781
Sales taxes 486,594 - - 486,594
Occupancy taxes 9,328 - - 9,328
Gas tax - - 144,878 144,878
Intergovernmental 393,358 83,959 417,851 895,168
Licenses, permits, and franchise fees 130,691 - 121,773 252,464
Interest and use of property 42,035 16,505 4,704 63,244
Miscellaneous 46,112 - 824 46,936
Total revenues 1,269,899 100,464 690,030 2,060,393
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 248,356 45,143 27,168 320,667
Public safety - Police 459,190 - 147,747 606,937
Planning and public works 131,884 - 196,356 328,240
Building - - 59,994 59,994
Housing and Community Development - = = -
Recycling - 7,490 7,490
Capital outlay 86,055 - 92,452 178,507
Debt service: -
Principal - - = -
Interest and fiscal charges - - - -
Total expenditures 925,485 45,143 531,207 1,501,835
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 344,414 55,321 158,823 558,558
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfer to fiduciary activities (8,745) - - (8,745)
Transfers in - - 18,300 18,300
Transfers out (11,007) - (1,459) (12,466)
Total other financing sources (uses) (19,752) - 16,841 (2,911)
Net change in fund balances 324,662 55,321 175,664 555,647
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 1,696,259 82,341 353,106 2,131,706
End of year $ 2020921 § 137,662  § 528,770 $ 2,687,353

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Reconciliation of Fund Basis Statements to Government-wide Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Compensated Capital
Absences/ Asset Government-
Fund Based Debt (Additions)/ wide
Functions/Programs Totals Service Depreciation Retirements Other Totals
Governmental activities:

General government $ 320,667 $ 14,157 § 48,125 § - 8 8,745 § 391,694
Public safety - Police 606,937 62,610 - - 669,547
Planning and public works 328,240 - 55,616 (169,018) 214,838
Building 59,994 - - = % 59,994
Recycling 7,490 = - - - 7,490
Capital outlay 178,507 - - (178,507) - -
Total governmental activities $ 1,501,835 § 14,157 § 166351 § (347,525) $ 8745 $ 1,343,563

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different

because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the

assets:

Capital asset purchases capitalized

347,525
(166,351)

Depreciation expense

Certain notes receivable are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures and
then offset by a deferred revenue as they are not available to pay current expenditures.
Likewise, when the note is collected it is reflected in revenue. This is the net change

between notes receivable collected and issued.

Change in Net Position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

79

$

$

555,647

181,174

(142,747)

579,917
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City of Rio Dell, California

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget to Actual - Major Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2019

General Fund

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Property taxes 124,439 124,439 161,781 $ 37,342
Sales taxes 387,243 387,243 486,594 99,351
Occupancy taxes 13,152 13,152 9,328 (3,824)
Intergovernmental 373,105 382,270 393,358 11,088
Licenses, permits, and franchise fees 113,226 113,226 130,691 17,465
Interest and use of property 22,553 22,553 42,035 19,482
Miscellaneous 1,760 1,760 46,112 44,352
Total revenues 1,035,478 1,044,643 1,269,899 225,256
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 262,926 263,894 248,356 15,538
Public safety - Police 843,962 856,010 459,190 396,820
Planning and public works 87,707 148,648 131,884 16,764
Building 210 210 - 210
Capital outlay 204,017 154,017 86,055 67,962
Total expenditures 1,398,822 1,422,779 925,485 497,294
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (363,344) (378,136) 344,414 722,550
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out - - (19,752) (19,752)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - (19,752) (19,752)
Net change in fund balances (363,344) (378,136) 324,662 702,798
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 1,696,259 1,696,259 1,696,259 -
End of year $ 1,332,915 $ 1,318,123 $§ 2,020,921 § 702,798

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CDBG Special Revenue Fund

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

- - -3 .

3,174 3,549 83,959 80,410
- - 16,505 16,505

3,174 3,549 100,464 96,915
4,798 5,173 45,143 1 (39,970)
4,798 5,173 45,143 (39,970)
(1,624) (1,624) 55,321 56,945
(1,624) (1,624) 55,321 56,945
82,341 82,341 82,341 -

80,717  § 80,717  $ 137,662  § 56,945
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Fund

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Description

Major Funds:

Sewer Fund

Water Fund

Accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s
wastewater treatment plant and collection facilities.

Accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s water
treatment and distribution system.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds

June 30,2019

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments $ 1,988,001 $ 1,543,169 $§ 3,531,170

Receivables:

Accounts 133,440 144,046 277,486
Intergovernmental - 174,395 174,395
Interest 6,634 5,503 12,137

Prepaid - 68,000 68,000

Total current assets 2,128,075 1,935,113 4,063,188
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, net 13,566,603 9,733,408 23,300,011
Total noncurrent assets 13,566,603 9,733,408 23,300,011
Total Assets $ 15,694,678 3 11,668,521 _$§ 27,363,199

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 7,161  § 69,002 § 76,163

Interest payable 84,740 - 84,740

Deposits payable 49,400 35,082 84,482

Compensated absences - current portion 1,670 1,912 3,582

Due within one year 175,823 136,000 311,823
Total current liabilities 318,794 241,996 560,790

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 15,029 17,209 32,238

Due after one year 5,601,939 1,292,000 6,893,939
Total noncurrent liabilities 5,616,968 1,309,209 6,926,177
Total liabilities 5,935,762 1,551,205 7,486,967

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 7,964,664 8,441,408 16,406,072

Unrestricted 1,794,252 1,675,908 3,470,160
Total net position 9,758,916 10,117,316 19,876,232
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and _
net position $ 15,694,678  § 11,668,521 $ 27,363,199

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30,2019

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for service 1,260,250 879,355 2,139,605
Connection fees 151,381 86,400 237,781
Late fees 26,279 36,176 62,455
Total operating revenues 1,437,910 1,001,931 2,439,841
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Current operations:
General government 271,966 220,452 492,418
Public works 579,137 631,213 1,210,350
Depreciation 563,478 248,198 811,676
Total operating expenses 1,414,581 1,099,863 2,514,444
OPERATING INCOME 23,329 (97,932) (74,603)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Miscellaneous 130 63,965 64,095
Intergovernmental revenues (expenses) - 188,036 188,036
Bad debt recovery (expense) 1,458 2,249 3,707
Interest revenue 26,916 17,214 44,130
Interest expense (128,372) - (128,372)
Contributed capital - 207,471 207,471
Total non-operating revenues, net (99,868) 478,935 379,067
NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS (76,539) 381,003 304,464
Transfers in (2,917) (2,917) (5,834)
Transfers out - - -
Total transfers (2,917) (2,917) (5,834)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (79,456) 378,086 298,630
NET POSITION:
Beginning of year 9,838,372 9,739,230 19,577,602
End of year $ 9,758916 _$§ 10,117,316 19,876,232

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers/users for services provided
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING

Receipts from miscellaneous

Other non-operating payments
Net cash used by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital grants received
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on long term debt
Interest paid on long term debt

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income received
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of year

End of year

Reconciliation of income from operations to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in current assets:
Accounts receivable
Assessments
Intergovernmental receivables
Prepaid items
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Compensated absences
Net cash provided by operating activities

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals
$ 1,463,851 $ 940,982 § 2,404,833
(445,976) (457,125) (903,101)
(407,431 (395,025) (802,456)
610,444 88,832 699,276
130 63,965 64,095
(1,458) 188,036 186,578
(1,328) 252,001 250,673
- 207,471 207,471
(183,274) (119,117) (302,391)
(202,038) (136,000) (338,038)
(130,896) - (130,896)
(516,208) (47,646) (563,854)
20,282 11,711 31,993
20,282 11,711 31,993
113,190 304,898 418,088
1,874,811 1,238,271 3,113,082
$ 1,988,001 $ 1,543,169  _§ 3,531,170
$ 23,329 $ (97,932) § (74,603)
563,478 248,198 811,676
(4,059) (27,006) (31,065)
30,000 - 30,000
- (33,943) (33,943)
- (68,000) (68,000)
(10,694) 57,407 46,713
2,505 2,451 4,956
5,885 7,657 13,542
$ 610,444 $ 88,832 $ 699,276

There were no noncash investing, capital, or financing activities affecting recognized assets and liabilities for the

year ended June 30, 2019.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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Fund

FIDUCIARY ACTIVITIES

Description

Agency Fund

Used to account for assets held for districbution by
the City as an agent for another entity.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Activities
June 30, 2019
Agency Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 30,762
Interest receivable 86
Total assets 30,848
LIABILITIES
Deposits in trust - due to others $ 30,848
Total Liabilities 30,848

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Rio Dell (the City) have been prepared in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental agencies. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Boards (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant

accounting principles are described below.

Financial Reporting Entity

The City is a general law City incorporated in the State of California on February 26, 1965. The City is
governed by an elected, five-member City Council. The following services are provided by the City to
its citizens: public safety (police); highways and streets; drinking water; wastewater collection,
treatment and disposal; public improvements; parks and recreation; planning and zoning; and general

administrative services.

The City operates as a self-governing local government unit within the State. It has limited authority to
levy taxes and has the authority to determine user fees for the services that it provides. The City’s main
funding sources include sales taxes, other intergovernmental revenue from state and federal sources,

user fees, and federal and state financial assistance.

The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, the City, (b) organizations for
which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the
primary government is not accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a
voting majority of the component unit’s board, and either (a) the City has the ability to impose its will
on the organization, or (b) there is a potential for the organization to provide a financial benefit to or

impose a financial burden on the City.

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the government and its component units,
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. These component units
are reported on a blended basis. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are combined with data of
the primary government. The financial statements of the individual component units, if applicable as
indicated below, may be obtained by writing to the City of Rio Dell, Finance Department, 675

Wildwood Ave., Rio Dell, CA 95562.

Description of Joint Powers Agreements

eements (JPAs) as described in Note 11. The financial

The City participates in several joint power agr
e JPAs

activities of the JPAs are not included in the accompanying basic financial statements becaus
are administered by governing boards that are separate from and independent of the City.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

es display information about the reporting
t for fiduciary funds. The
Governmental activities

The statement of net position and statement of activiti
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity excep

statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities.
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, 2) operating grants and contributions,
and 3) capital grants and contributions restricted to the operating or capital requirements of a specific
function or segment. All taxes and internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues

rather than program revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts, which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
‘expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary
categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the

following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental fund are at least ten percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that
category or type; and

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, oOr expenditures/expenses of the individual
governmental fund are at least five percent of the corresponding total for all
governmental funds combined.

The City reports the following major funds:

e General Fund
e CDBG Special Revenue Fund
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Basis of Presentation, Continued

Descriptions of these funds are included on the divider page preceding the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:
Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with the City which are not
required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund. From this fund
are paid the City’s general operating expenditures, the fixed charges, and the capital costs that are not

paid through other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally or otherwise
restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Capital Project Funds

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises. Costs are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Fiduciary Funds

Agency Funds

Agency Funds are clearing type funds for the collection of taxes or deposits held in trust, on behalf of
individuals, private organizations and other governments. The funds are custodial in nature (assets

equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Measurement Focus

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various

financial statements.

On the government-wide Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities, governmental and
business-type activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus. The
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of net income, financial
position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their
activities are reported. Fund equity is classified as Net position, which serves as an indicator of

financial position.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus is used for
governmental funds. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources
during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial

resources at the end of the period.

The enterprise funds and private purpose trust funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement
focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of net income,
financial position, and cash flows. Enterprise fund and private purpose trust funds equity is classified as

net position.

Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore, measurement
focus is not applicable to them.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary funds financial statements required by GASB
Statement No. 34 are reported using the "economic resources”" measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City's assets and liabilities, including capital
assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The
Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, while expenses are recognized in

the period in which the liability is incurred.

The governmental fund financial statements are accounted for on a spending or "current
financial resources" measurement focus, and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, only current assets and liabilities (except for long-term advances from the City) are
included in the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures
and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and

available to finance expenditures of the current period.

-86-



City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Basis of Accounting, Continued

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual (generally
60 days after fiscal year end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which
have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the City, are property taxes, sales taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, other taxes and investment earnings. Fines, licenses and permits,
and charges for services are not susceptible to accrual because they are not measurable until
received in cash. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund

liability is incurred.

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met.
Under the terms of grant agreements, the City may fund certain programs with a combination of
cost- reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus, both restricted
and unrestricted net position may be available to finance program expenditures. The City's
policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general revenues

if necessary.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving
or giving value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual
basis, revenue from taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied or
assessed. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in

which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

Cash Deposits and Investments

The City pools cash from all sources and all funds, except certain specific investments within funds
and cash with fiscal agents, so that it can be invested at the maximum yield, consistent with safety and

liquidity, while individual funds can make expenditures at any time.

The City's investment policy and section 53601 of the California Government Code allow the

following investments:
a) Certificates of Deposit;
b) Obligations of the State of California.

The City does not enter into reverse repurchase agreements.
The City's investments are carried at fair value instead of cost, as required by U.S. generally accepted

accounting principles. The City adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at
each fiscal year end if material, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal

year.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, Continued

The City places certain funds with the State of California's Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).
The City is a voluntary participant in LAIF, which is regulated by California Government Code
Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California and the Pooled Money
Investment Board. The State Treasurer's office pools these funds with those of other governmental
agencies in the state and invests the cash. The fair value of the City's investment in this pool is reported
in the accompanying financial statements based upon the City's pro-rata share of the fair value
provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).

The monies held in the pooled investment funds are not subject to categorization by risk category. The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are
recorded on the amortized cost basis. Funds are accessible and transferable to the master account with
twenty-four hours' notice. Included in LAIF's investments are collateralized mortgage obligations,
mortgage backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate
securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and corporations. Financial
statements for LAIF can be obtained from the California State Treasurer's Office: State Treasurer's

Office, 915 Capitol Mall, Suite 110, Sacramento, CA 95814.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result
in amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified
as “due to and from other funds.” Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as
“advances from and to other funds.” Interfund receivables and payables between funds within
governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net position. See Note 9 for details of

interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at year-end.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet
received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include property taxes, sales and
use taxes, utility user taxes, intergovernmental subventions, interest earnings, and expense

reimbursements.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals
such as property tax, sales tax, utility user tax, and intergovernmental subventions since they are
usually both measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available, such
as property tax, are deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with the modified accrual
basis, but not deferred in the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual

basis.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, Continued

Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned only if paid within 60 days since they
would be considered both measurable and available. The loans receivable are recorded in the fund
statements, but are deferred to indicate they do not represent current financial resources. The loans are
recognized when advanced in the government-wide statements. The City’s experience is that all
accounts receivable are collectible; therefore an allowance for doubtful accounts is unnecessary.

Inventory

in inventory records of unused materials and supplies for the

The City does not record and mainta ] ¢ .
dered immaterial and materials and supplies are currently

various funds. Inventories are consi
expensed.

Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. In the governmental fund
financial statements, prepaid items are offset with a reservation of fund balance for long-term assets to
indicate they do not constitute current resources available for appropriation.

Capital Assets

The City's assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost, if actual is unavailable,
except for donated Capital Assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting at $5,000 for non-infrastructure

capital assets and $25,000 for infrastructure capital assets.

Government-Wide Statements

Public domain (infrastructure) capital assets include roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets,
sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems.

The accounting treatment of property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the
assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are
reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net position. Depreciation is
provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. No
depreciation is recorded in the year of acquisition or in the year of disposition.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, Continued

The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings and improvements 5 —50 years Landscaping 30 years
Roadway improvements 50 years Signage 25 years
Sidewalks, curbs, and gutters 50 years Leasehold improvements 5 years
Storm drain pipes/structures 50 years Machinery and equipment 3 -5 years

3 years

Traffic signal devices 5 —40 years Vehicles

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for
as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in
proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same way as in the government-wide statements.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for

deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will nor be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources.
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item, deferred

inflows on the City’s CDBG loans reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Compensated Absences

Full time employees accumulate earned vacation, holiday and compensated leave of varying amounts
dependent upon length of service with the City. These amounts are deemed fully vested with the
employee when earned. The City also provides full time employees with sick leave that generally must

be used for sickness and injury-related leave time.

The City does not currently provide post-employment benefits.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, Continued

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues in governmental funds arise when potential revenue does not meet both the
“measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned revenues in
enterprise funds and the statement of net position arise when resources are received by the City before
it has legal claim to them, (i.e., when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying

expenses).

Equity Classification

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net position and is displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consists of capital assets, including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the

acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net position — consists of net position with constraints placed on the use by
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or bylaws or regulations of other
governments or law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position — all other net position that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is classified as nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the
government-wide statements. The classifications for governmental funds are defined as follows for the

City:
Nonspendable Fund Balance —

e Assets that will never convert to cash (prepaid items, inventory).
Assets that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect the current period (long-term notes or

loans receivable).
Resources that must be maintained intact pursuant to legal or contractual requirements (the

principal of an endowment).
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Equity Classification, Continued
Fund Financial Statements, continued

Restricted Fund Balance —

e Resources that are subject to externally enforceable legal restrictions imposed by parties
altogether outside the government (creditors, grantors, contributors and other governments).
e Resources that are subject to limitations imposed by law through constitutional provisions or

enabling legislation (Gas Tax).

Committed Fund Balance —
Self imposed limitations set in place prior to the end of the period (encumbrances, economic

contingencies and uncertainties).
Limitation at the highest level of decision-making (Council) that requires formal action at the

same level to remove.
Council resolution is required to be taken to establish, modify or rescind a fund balance

commitment

Assigned Fund Balance —
e Amounts in excess of nonspendable, restricted and committed fund balance in funds other than

the general fund automatically are reported as assigned fund balance.
e Assigned amounts for a specific purpose are as authorized by the City’s Finance Director

through its fund balance policy.

Unassigned Fund Balance —

e Residual net resources
Total fund balance in the general fund in excess of nonspendable, restricted, committed, and

assigned fund balance (surplus).
Excess of nonspendable, restricted, and committed fund balance over total fund balance

(deficit).
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses

Property Tax

The County of Humboldt (the County) assesses properties, bills for, collects, and distributes property
taxes for the City per the following schedule:

Secured Unsecured
Valuation dates March 1 March 1
Lien/Levy dates July 1 July 1
Due dates 50% on November 1 July 1
50% on February 1
Delinquent as of December 10, April 10 August 31

The term "unsecured" refers to taxes on personal property other than real estate, land and buildings.
These taxes are secured by liens on the property being taxed. Property tax revenues are recognized by
the City in the fiscal year they are assessed provided they become available as defined above.

Since the passage of California Proposition 13, beginning with fiscal year 1978-79, taxes are based
either on a 1% rate applied to the 1975-76 assessed value of the property, or on 1% of the sales price of
the property on sales transactions and construction which occur after the 1975-76 assessment. Assessed
values on properties (exclusive of increases related to sales transactions and improvements) can rise at
a maximum of 2% per year. The amount collected by the County is distributed in accordance with
State law to the various public agencies. Therefore, the City does not levy a specific tax rate but
receives a share of the property tax revenue based on a State formula. The City's tax rate is $1.00/$100

of assessed value, the maximum allowable under Proposition 13.

During fiscal year 1993-94, the State passed legislation which permanently shifted an additional
amount of property taxes from cities to schools. This amount was partially offset by one-time
payments by the State to cities from the State "Transportation Planning and Development" allocation.
Also during 1993- 94, an alternate method of property tax allocation (the "Teeter Plan") was adopted.
Under this plan, the City receives 100 percent of the secured property tax levied to which it is entitled,

whether or not collected.

Unsecured delinquent taxes are considered fully collectible and no allowance for uncollectible taxes is
provided. Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available. "Available" means due,
or past due, and receivable within the current period and collected or expected to be collected soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities for the current period. This period is 60 days from the

end of the fiscal year.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Interfund Transfers

Resources are reallocated between funds by reporting them as interfund transfers. For the purposes of
the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual governmental funds have been

eliminated.

Budgetary Accounting

The City Council establishes budgets for the General Fund and all Special Revenue Funds, except for
certain Special Revenue Funds for which expenditures are controlled by grant funding or by
assessments received. Budgetary control is legally maintained at the fund level for these funds.
Department heads submit budget requests to the City Manager. The City Manager prepares an estimate
of revenues and prepares recommendations for the next year’s budget. The preliminary budget may or
may not be amended by the City Council and is adopted by resolution by the City Council on or before

June 30 in accordance with the municipal code.

The City Council may amend the budget by motion during the fiscal year. Only the Council can
authorize transfers between funds and approve inter-fund loans. The City Manager is authorized to
transfer budgeted amounts within a fund without formal council action or approval. The City Manager
is authorized to increase expenditures in relation to revenues in funds receiving assigned revenues

without approval by the City Council.

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level, which is the legal level of
control. Supplemental appropriations, which increase appropriations, may be made during the fiscal
year. There were no material supplemental appropriations made for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015. Budget information is presented for the General and budgeted Special Revenue Funds in the

fund financial statements. The budget information is presented on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles. Appropriations, except open project appropriations, and unexpended

grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts have been reclassified to provide for comparable results on a year to year basis.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Pooled Cash and Investments
The City pools cash from all sources and funds, except certain specific investments within funds and

cash with fiscal agents, so that it can be invested at the maximum yield, consistent with safety and
liquidity, while individual funds can make expenditures at any time.

Categorization of Credit Risk of Securities Instruments
The City and its fiscal agents invest in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual

investments are evidenced by specific identifiable pieces of paper called securities instruments, ot by
an electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the security, called
the book entry system. Individual investments are generally made by the City's fiscal agents as
required under its debt issues. In order to maximize security, the City employs the Trust Department
of a bank as custodian of all City managed investments, regardless of their form.

At June 30, 2019, the City’s pooled cash and investments, classified by maturity, consisted of the
following stated at fair value:

Maturities (in years) Fair
<1 1to3 3t05 Deposits Market Value
Cash equivalents and investments pooled
Pooled cash, at fair value
Cash in bank $ - $ - 3 - $ 2771469 § 2,771,469
Petty cash - - - 1,250 1,250
Total pooled items - - - 2,772,719 2,772,719
Pooled investments, at fair value
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund 3,052,837 - - - 3,052,837
Total pooled investments - interest obligations 3,052,837 - - - 3,052,837
Total cash equivalents and investments pooled $ 3,052,837 § - $ - $ 2772719 § 5825556

Amounts reported in:

Governmental activities $ 2263624

Business-type activities 3,531,170

Fiduciary activities 30,762

Total $ 5825556
Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Years)

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund $ 3,052,837 -

Total fair value $ 3,052,837

Portfolio weighted average maturity
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, continued

_Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City manages
its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term
investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or
coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed

for operations.

Interest rate risk

Credit risk — Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event of the failure of a
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. All investments in LAIF and the fiscal agent money
market funds are not evidenced by specific securities and, therefore, are not subject to custodial credit

risk.

Concentration of credit risk — The City’s i
one issuer that is in excess of five percent of the gov
made by the City Treasurer are limited to those allowab
City’s Investment Policy, which is accepted annua
concentrations in any one issuer for the year.

ernment’s total investments. The investments
le under State statutes as incorporated into the
lly by the City Council. There were no

d by the State of California titled Local Agency
of the pool funds in Structured Notes and Asset-
dit risk with the full faith and credit of the
n, these Structured Notes and Asset-

The City participates in an investment pool manage
Investment Fund (LAIF) which has invested 1.77%
Backed Securities. LAIF's investments are subject to cre
State of California collateralizing these investments. In additio
Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to changes in interest rates.

isk that, in the event of a bank failure, the

Custodial credit risk — deposits. For deposits, this is the
Policy addresses custodial credit risk,

City’s deposits may not be returned. The City’s Investment
which follows the Government Code.

posits was $2,771,469 and the balances in

At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the City’s de
nancial institutions, $250,000 was covered

financial institutions were $2,794,395. Of the balance in fi
by federal depository insurance and $2,544,395 was collateralized as required by State law

(Government Code Section 53630), by the pledging financial institution with assets held in a common
pool for the City and other governmental agencies, but not in the name of the City. As of June 30,
2019, the City’s investments were held by the City’s custodial agent, but not in the City’s name, and
were insured up to specified limits by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) and

supplemental private insurance up to a limit of $150 million.
ociations to pledge government securities with

rtgage notes with a value of
this collateral is held in the

California Law requires banks and savings and loan ass
a market value of 110% of the City's cash on deposit or first trust deed mo
150% of the deposit as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law,
City's name and places the City ahead of general creditors of the institution.

nvestment policy does not allow for an investment in any -
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, continued

Custodial credit risk — investments. For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside counterparty. For the investments maintained by the City, no
security was uninsured or unregistered or held by a brokerage firm which is also the counterparty for

the security.

Investment in LAIF

The City is a voluntary participant in California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is
regulated by California Government Code Section under the oversight of the Local Investment
Advisory Board (Board). The Board consists of five members as designated by state statute and is
chaired by the State Treasurer who is responsible for day to day administration of LAIF. The total
amount invested by all public agencies as of June 30, 2019 was $24,584,685,279 of which the City had
a balance of $3,052,837. LAIF is part of the California Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA),
which at June 30, 2019 has a portfolio with market valuation of $106,046,486 thousand. Of the total
invested, 98.23% was invested in non-derivative financial products and 1.77% in structured notes and
asset- backed securities. The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the
accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value
provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are

recorded on an amortized cost basis.

57
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3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2019:

Receivables
Governmental Activities
Accounts receivable $ 475,243
$ 475,243
Business-type activities
Accounts receivable $ 277,486
Intergovernmental 174,395
Interest 12,137
$ 464,018

These amounts resulted in the following concentrations in receivables:

Other Governments 18.57%
Individuals/Business  80.14%
Financial Institutions 1.29%

Amounts do not indicate a significant concentration (greater than 25%) with any single individual,
business or agency.

4. LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

The City engages in programs designed to encourage business enterprises, construction or
improvement in low-to-moderate income housing, or other projects. Under these programs,
grants or loans are provided with favorable terms to businesses, homeowners or developers who

agree to spend these funds in accordance with the City's terms.

Loans and notes receivable for the year ended June 30, 2019, consisted of the following:

Beginning Ending
July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019

Housing Rehabilitation and Affordable Housing Notes $ 1,150,864 $ - $ (142,747) $ 1,008,117

Total loans receivable $ 1,150,864 § - $ (142,747 $ 1,008,117

Housing Rehabilitation, Business Enterprise and Affordable Housing

The City has provided loans to various homeowners and businesses for rehabilitation. The
maximum loan amount is $100,000, carrying various interest rates and payment dates. Although
these notes are expected to be repaid in frill, their balance has been offset by deferred revenue.
Governmental funds report a deferred inflow of resources in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
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S. CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Balance Balance
7/1/2018 Additions Retirements ~ 6/30/2019
Capital assets (Not Depreciated)
Land $ 627,945 - $ - § 627,945
Construction in progress - 183,295 . 183,295
Total capital assets (not depreciated) 627,945 183,295 - 811,240
Capital assets (being depreciated)
Buildings and improvements 349,739 6,683 - 356,422
Equipment 531,914 - - 531,914
Vehicles 228,354 - (40,543) 187,811
Streets and roads 1,946,002 157,638 - 2,103,640
Insfrastructures : 2,406,317 - - 2,406,317
Total capital assets (being depreciated) 5,462,326 164,321 (40,543) 5,586,104
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 41,056 12,413 - 53,469
Equipment 507,946 4,285 - 512,231
Vehicles 147,912 62,609 (40,543) 169,978
Streets and raods 309,999 38,918 - 348,917
Infrastructure 463,452 48,126 - 511,578
Total accumulateddepreciation 1,470,365 166,351 (40,543) 1,596,173
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 4,619,906 $ 4,801,171
Depreciation expense for capital assets was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental-Type Activities
General Government $ 48,125
Public Safety 62,610
55,616

Planning and public works
Total Governemental Activities

59

$§ 166,351
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS, continued

Business-type capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Capital assets (Not Depreciated)
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets (not depreciated)

Capital assets (being depreciated)
Insfrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Equipments
Vehicles
Total capital assets (being depreciated)

Less accumulated depreciation:
Insfrastructure

Buildings and Improvements
Equipments
Vehicles

Total accumulateddepreciation

Net depreciable assets

Total net capital assets

Depreciation expense for Business-type capital assets was charged to functions and programs based on

Balance Balance

7/12018  Additions Retirements Adjustments  6/30/2019
$ 507,859 $ - $ $ - § 507,859
1,998,049 - - (1,998,049) -
2,505,908 - - (1,998,049) 507,859
25,181,825 179,764 - 1,998,049 27,359,638
206,508 - - - 206,508
1,245,855 26,874 - - 1,272,729
91,385 95,084 - - 186,469
26,725,573 301,722 - 1,998,049 29,025,344
4,172,567 757,641 - - 4,930,208
179,627 8,598 - - 188,225
977,937 45,437 - - 1,023,374
91,385 - - - 91,385
5,421,516 811,676 - - 6,233,192
21,304,057 (509,954) - 1,998,049 22,792,152
$ 23,809,965 § (509,954) § ® $ - $ 23,300,011

their usage of related assets. The amount allocated to each function on program are as follows:

Business-Type Activities

Water
Sewer

Total Busines-Type Activities

$ 248,198
563,478
$ 811,676
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6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following at June 30, 20109:

Governmental ~ Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Accounts payable $ 30,243  § 76,163 § 106,406
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 50,570 - 50,570
Total $ 80,813 § 76,163 $§ 156,976

These amounts resulted in the following concentrations in payables:

Vendors 68%
Employees 32%

Amounts do not indicate a significant concentration (greater than 2

employee.

7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

5%) with any single vendor or

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2019:

Original Issue Balance Balance Due Within
Amount July 1,2018 _ Additions Retirements June 30, 2019 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences $ - $ 22187 § 14,157 _§ - $ 36,344 $ 3,634
Total governmental activities $ - $ 22187 § 14,157 % - $ 36,344 $ 3,634
Business-type activities
Safe Drinking Water Loan $ 2,720,000 $1,564,000 3§ - $ (136,0000 $ 1,428,000 § 136,000
FMHA Special Assessment Bonds 535,800 30,000 - (30,000) - -
State of California Water
Resources Control Board 6,980,359 5,949,800 - (172,038) 5,777,762 175,823
Total business-type activity debt 10,236,159 7,543,800 - (338,038) 7,205,762 311,823
Compensated absences - 22,278 13,542 - 35,820 3,582
Total business-type activities $ - "$7566078 § 13542 § (338,038) § 7,241,582 3% 315,405
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7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, continued

Governmental Activities
Compensated Absences

The City records employee absences, such as vacation, illness, and holidays, for which it is expected
that employees will be paid as compensated absences. Compensated absences had a balance of $36,344
at June 30, 2019, of that amount $3,634 is expected to be paid within a year. The net changes of the
compensated absences are allocated to the public safety department on the Statement of Activities.

Business-type Activities

Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan

In August 2005, the City entered into a loan agreement with the California Department of Health
Services, Drinking Water and Environmental Services Division, for a loan in an amount up to
$2,720,000. The loan was subsequently funded by the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. The
proceeds from the loan were used to assist in financing construction of a project that will enable the
City to meet safe drinking water standards established under the Health and Safety Code and
California Code of Regulations. The non-interest bearing loan calls for 50 equal semiannual payments
due in July and January of each year, beginning in July 2009. At June 30, 2019, the balance of the note

was $1,428,000.

Assessment Bonds

In November 1978, the City borrowed $535,800 through the issuance of bonds to finance
improvements to the City's sewage collection system. The terms of an agreement with FMHA require
semiannual payments of interest at 5 percent and annual payments of principal that increase from
$10,000 in the early years of the agreement to $30,000 in the later years. The bonds matured in 2019.

State of California Water Resources Control Board

The City has obtained a loan from the California Department of Water Resources to finance an
upgrade of the wastewater treatment plant to comply with State wastewater standards. The debt is
required to be serviced through wastewater system user charges. The maximum loan amount is
$6,980,359. Principal and interest are payable annually on October 31. The rate of interest is 2.20%.
The annual principal and interest payments are $302,933 and continue through the fiscal year 2044.
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T LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, continued

Debt Service

Future debt service for Business-Type Activities at June 30, 2019, is as follows for all debt except
compensated absences and claims liabilities:

Year Ending

Business-type Activities

State of California Water

June 30, Safe Drinking Water Loan Resources Control Board Total
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2020 $ 136,000 - $ 175,823 $ 127,111 311,823 $ 127,111
2021 136,000 - 179,691 123,243 315,691 123,243
2022 136,000 - 183,644 119,289 319,644 119,289
2023 136,000 - 187,684 115,249 323,684 115,249
2024 136,000 - 191,813 111,120 327,813 111,120
2025 - 2029 680,000 - 1,024,252 490,415 1,704,252 490,415
2030 - 2034 68,000 - 1,141,987 372,680 1,209,987 372,680
2035 -2039 - - 1,273,256 241,411 1,273,256 241,411
2040 - 2044 - - 1,419,613 95,054 1,419,613 95,054
2045 - 2049 . - - - - .
Total $ 1,428,000 - $ 5,777,763 $ 1,795,572 7,205,763 $ 1,795,572
Due within one year $ 136,000 - $ 175,823 $ 127,111 311,823 $ 127,111
Due after one year 1,292,000 - 5,601,940 1,668,461 6,893,940 1,668,461
Total § 1,428,000 - $ 5,771,763 $ 1,795,572 7,205,763 $§ 1,795,572
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8. NET POSITION/ FUND BALANCES

Net position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Net investment in capital assets $ 4,801,171 $ 16,406,072 $ 21,207,243
Restricted 350,064 - 350,064
Unrestricted 3,308,435 3,470,160 6,778,595
Total $ 8,459,670 $ 19,876,232 $ 28,335,902

o Restricted balances are for the same purposes as fund balance restrictions because external
restriction requirements are the same. See descriptions of the restrictions below.

Fund Balance

Nonspendable and Restricted fund balance consisted of the following at June 30, 2019:

Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $ 28,672
Total Nonspendable $ 28,672
Restricted:
Governmental Funds:
CDBG $ 137,662
Gas Tax 212,402
Total Restricted $ 350,064

The following describe the purpose of each nonspendable, restricted, and committed category used by
the City:

Nonspendable

o Prepaid Items — represents nonspendable amounts classified as prepaid items.

Restricted

e CDBG- represents amounts restricted for the City’s CDBG housing activities as these
programs are supported by specific grants requiring the restriction.

Gas Tax — represents amounts restricted for street maintenance purposes as defined in
Sections 2105, 2106, 2107 and 2107.5 of the Streets and Highway Code.
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8. NET POSITION/ FUND BALANCES, continued

Fund Balance Deficits

Deficit fund balances consisted of the following:

Nonmajor Spcial Revnue Funds:

Measure Z

STIP
Total Nonmajor Funds
Total Fund Balance Deficits

As of
June 30,2019

495
1,266

1,761

1,761

The above deficit fund balances have occurred due to the spending of funds prior to the receipt of
revenues (cost reimbursements). The Fund balances will be restored in the near future as revenues are

received.

Excess of Expenditures and Transfers over Appropriations:

Expenditures and transfers exceeded appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2019, for the following

funds:
Final Expenditures and
Fund Appropriations Transfers Excess
Major Funds
Special Revenue Funds
CDBG $ 5,173 45,143 $ (39,970)
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9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Due to and from balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the

accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

Due to and due from other funds consisted of the following as of June 30, 2019:

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
Governmental Funds
Major Funds:
General Fund $ 79,718 -
Total Major Funds 79,718 -
Nonmajor Funds:
ISTEA - 39,708
Measure Z - 7,736
STIP - 32,274
Total Nonmajor Funds - 79,718
Total Governmental Funds 79,718 79,718
Total Transfers $ 79,718 79,718

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in
the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with

budgetary authorizations.
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9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS, CONTINUED

Transfers consisted of the following at June 30, 2019:

Transfers In Transfers Out
Governmental Funds
Major Funds:
General Fund $ - $ 11,007
Total Major Funds - 11,007
Nonmajor Funds:
Special Revenue Funds
Gas Tax - 1,459
Building 18,300 -
Total Nonmajor Funds 18,300 1,459
Total Governmental Funds 18,300 12,466
Proprietary Funds
Sewer Fund - 2917
Water Fund - 2,917
Total Proprietary Funds - 5,834
Total $ 18,300 $ 18,300
10. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City is a member of the
Small Cities Organized Risk Effort Joint Powers Authority (SCORE). SCORE provides insurance
coverage for general liability, property, and workers' compensation claims under the terms of a joint-
powers agreement with the City and several other governmental municipalities.

SCORE is insured up to $500,000 per general liability and $1,000,000 per property claim and has
purchased excess of loss insurance policies providing coverage above the self-insurance limit to a
maximum of $25,000,000. The City has a $2,500 - $50,000 deductible per claim for general liability,
property and workers' compensation cases. When the deductible is met, SCORE becomes responsible

for payment of the excess claim.

Payments for insurance claims are recorded as expenditures in the funds in which the liabilities were
incurred. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 10, if the third party administrator, SCORE, does
not insure the loss occurrence then the City shall accrue a loss, if probable and reasonably estimable.
As of June 30, 2019, the City has no uninsured occurrences. The City has not used an actuary in
determining the liability reserve if needed. Because the actual claim liabilities depend on such complex
factors as inflation and changes in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process used in computing
claim liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims are evaluated periodically to
take into account recently settled claims, the frequency of claims and other economic and social

factors.
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11. JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

The City is a member of various joint powers authorities, which provide goods or services to the City
and other authority members. Under the criteria established by GASB Statement No. 14, the City does
not have sufficient authority, influence or accountability over these entities to incorporate them in this
annual report. Additionally, the City has determined that it has no ongoing financial interest in or
responsibility for any of these organizations as defined by GASB Statement No. 14. The names and

general functions of these joint powers are as follows:

Humboldt Transit Authority

Humboldt Transit Authority (HTA) was created as a separate legal entity by a joint powers agreement
between Humboldt County and the Cities of Fortuna, Eureka, Arcata, Trinidad, and Rio Dell. The
governing board consists of a city council member and an alternate member appointed from each
participating city, as well as two board members and up to two alternate members appointed by the
Humboldt County Board of Supervisors. HTA is responsible for adopting its own budget and has the
power to incur debts, liabilities, or other obligations. On commencement of operations of HTA, the
County contributed 50 percent of the initial equity, and the participating cities jointly contributed 50
percent based upon population data. The participants do not have an ongoing equity interest in HTA.

However, the participants do share operating costs of HTA, and the current share of the City of Rio
Dell is 2.8 percent. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the City paid HTA $40,646. At termination
of the agreement, all surplus monies will be returned to the participants in proportion to the amounts
received and property shall be divided in a manner agreed upon by the parties. Complete financial
statements for Humboldt Transit Authority may be obtained at the offices of the Authority at 133 V

Street, Eureka, California 95501.

Hazardous Materials Response Authority

) was created as a separate legal entity by a joint

Hazardous Materials Response Authority (HMRA
dt, the County of Del Norte, and Cities of Eureka,

powers agreement between the County of Humbol
Crescent City, Arcata, Blue Lake, Fortuna, Trinidad, and Rio Dell. (The City of Ferndale withdrew

from the agreement during 1994-1995). The purpose of this joint venture is to pool resources of the
participants to provide a united, coordinated, orderly, positive, and more effective means of aiding and
assisting in the formulation, administration, implementation and maintenance of an area-wide

hazardous materials response team.

HMRA is governed by a board of directors comprised of one member and an alternate appointed by
each participant. It adopts its own budget and has the powers to incur debts, liabilities, or obligations.
The City of Eureka is responsible for directing the operations of Hazardous Materials Response Teams
and for the accounting of HMRA, and in return HMRA reimburses the City of Eureka for the costs of

operation and accounting services.
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11. JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS, CONTINUED

Upon commencement of HMRA, the participants agreed to contribute a proportionate share of the cost
of operations based on population. The participants do not have an ongoing equity interest in HMRA.
However, the participants do share the operating costs of HMRA, and the current share of the City of
Rio Dell is 1.9 percent, based on population. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the City paid
HMRA $717. At termination of the agreement, all surplus monies will be returned to the participants in
proportion of the amounts received by HMRA; property shall be divided in a manner agreed upon by
the participants. Complete financial statements of HMRA are on file at the offices of the City of

Eureka at 531 K Street, Eureka, California 95501.

Redwood Region Economic Development Commission

Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (RREDC) was established on November 1,
1977, under a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement among the nineteen public agencies within
Humboldt County, including the City of Rio Dell. RREDC is a separate public entity created to aid,
assist, and coordinate the formulation, administration, and implementation of the Economic
Development Action Plan and Strategy for Humboldt County, and to assist in the implementation of
economic development projects and programs to improve the quality of life in the area. RREDC is
governed by one member and an alternate appointed by each participant. Complete financial
statements for RREDC are on file at the offices of RREDC at 520 E Street, Eureka, California 95001.

12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plans, available to all City employees, permit employees to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the plans is optional. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency. As explained previouslyRio, the City has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.
32 and, therefore, assets and liabilities of these plans have been excluded from the accompanying
financial statements. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City made contributions totaling

$129,694 to the plan.
13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

The City is involved in litigation incurred in the normal course of conducting City business. Although
the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City’s counsel, the
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, CONTINUED

Grants and Allocations

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal and state government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the

City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Commitments

The City had no significant unexpended contractual commitments as of June 30, 2019.

14. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued Statement No. 83, "Certain Asset Retirement Obligations." The requirements of
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is
encouraged. This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement
obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a
tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement
activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this

Statement. This statement had no effect on these financial statements.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 84, "Fiduciary Activities." The requirements of this Statement
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier application is
encouraged. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of
fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be
reported. The City will implement this statement, as applicable, to its financial statements for the year

ending June 30, 2020.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 87, "Leases.” The requirements of this Statement are effective
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on
the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset,
and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The
City will implement this statement, as applicable, to its financial statements for the year ending June

30, 2021.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2019

14. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS, CONTINUED

The GASB has issued Statement No. 88, "Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements.” The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The primary objective of this
Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements
related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities
governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. This statement had no effect

on these financial statements.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 89, "dccounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period." The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encouraged. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to
enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing
for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. The City will implement this statement, as applicable, to its financial statements

for the year ending June 30, 2021.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 90, "Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61." The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The primary objectives of this
Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority
equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement
information for certain component units. The City will implement this statement, as applicable, to its

financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2020.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 91, "Conduit Debt Obligations." The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Earlier application is
encouraged. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting
conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments
extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note
disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit
debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing
standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and
improving required note disclosures. The City will implement this statement, as applicable, to its

financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2022.
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NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Fund Description

Gas Tax Accounts for funds received and expended for street maintenance
purposes as defined in Sections 2105, 2106, 2107, and 2107.5 of
the Streets and Highway Code.

TDA Accounts for funds received and expended for transit, street,
pedestrian and bike purposes in Accordance with the
Transportation Development Act.

ISTEA Accounts for funds received and expended in accordance with the
Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act.

Solid Waste Accounts for the City's portion of the Humboldt Waste
Management Authority's tipping fees.

SLESF Accounts for funds received to be used for public safety purposes.

Measure Z . Accounts for funds received and expended for Measure Z.

STIP Accounts for funds received and expended in accordance with the
State Transportation Improvement Program, a multi-year capital
improvement program of transportation projects on and off the
State Highway System.

Building Accounts for funds received and expended for building
maintenance purposes.

Recycling Accounts for funds received and expended for recycling purposes.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2019

Cash and investments

Receivables:
Interest

Intergovernmental
Other receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Total liabilities:

Fund Balances:

Restricted
Assigned

Unassigned (deficit)

ASSETS

LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES

Total fund balances

Total liabilities deferred inflows and fund balances

Gas

Tax TDA ISTEA Solid Waste

$ 201,389 69,757 - $ 38,677
670 282 - 129

11,023 - 54,158 1,169

$ 213,082 70,039 54,158 § 39,975
$ 680 311 135  § 1
- - 39,708 -

680 311 39,843 1
212,402 E - -

- 69,728 14,315 39,974

212,402 69,728 14,315 39,974

$ 213,082 70,039 54,158 $ 39,975

~116-



SLESF Measure Z STIP Building Recycling Totals

70,500 $ - 8 - 0§ 99991 $§ 24519 $ 504,833
241 - ; 338 82 1,742

- - 31,008 . - 31,008

- 7,241 - 98 . 73,689
70,741 _$ 7241 $ 31,008 $ 100427 $ 24601 $ 611272
- 8 -8 ~ 3 1,657 $ - B 2,784

- 7,736 32,274 . - 79,718

= 7,736 32,274 1,657 - 82,502

- - - - s 212,402
70,741 " 98,770 24,601 318,129
i (495) (1,266) (1,761)
70,741 (495) (1,266) 98,770 24,601 528,770
70741 S 7241 $ 31,008 $ 100427 $ 24601 $ 611272
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City of Rio Dell, California

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Gas Tax TDA ISTEA Solid Waste
REVENUES:
Gas tax $ 144,878  § - 8 - 8 -
Intergovernmental - 124,891 26,707 -
Licenses, permits, and franchise taxes - - - 4,358
Interest and use of property 2,267 728 - 464
Miscellaneous 24 8 5 -
Total revenues 147,169 125,627 26,712 4,822
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 20,659 6,509 = =
Public safety - Police - - - -
Planning and public works 87,750 91,521 14,860 -
Building 5,282 2,990 - -
Recycling - - - 7,490
Capital outlay 9,139 90 - -
Total expenditures 122,830 101,110 14,860 7,490
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 24,339 24,517 11,852 (2,668)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - - = -
Transfers out (1,459) - - -
Total other financing
sources and uses (1,459) - . -
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING (USES) 22,880 24,517 11,852 (2,668)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS):
Beginning of year 189,522 45,211 2,463 42,642
End of year $ 212,402 § 69,728 $§ 14315 § 39,974
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SLESF Measure Z STIP Building Recycling Totals

$ = $ - 8 - & - B - $ 144,878
148,747 27,058 85,448 s 5,000 417,851
. - . 117,415 - 121,773
. . - 1,003 242 4,704
787 - - - - 824
149,534 27,058 85,448 118,418 5,242 690,030
- - . : . 27,168
120,603 27,144 - - - 147,747
. - 2,225 . - 196,356
- - - 51,722 . 59,994
- - 5 . - 7,490
- . 83,223 - - 92,452
120,603 27,144 85,448 51,722 - 531,207
28,931 (86) - 66,696 5,242 158,823
- . 5 18,300 - 18,300
] - ) ] ; (1,459)
. . - 18,300 - 16,841
28,931 (86) - 84,996 5,242 175,664
41,810 (409) (1,266) 13,774 19,359 353,106

$ 70,741 § 495) $ (1,266) $ 98,770 $§ 24,601 § 528,770
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2019

REVENUES:

Gas Tax
Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government

Planning and public works

Building
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):

Beginning of year

End of year

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 151,409 § 151,409 144,878 6,531)
- - 2,291 2,291
151,409 151,409 147,169 (4,240)

23,669 23,637 20,659 2,978

89,576 88,989 87,750 1,239

13,181 13,799 5,282 8,517

24,850 25,050 9,139 15,911
151,276 151,475 122,830 28,645

133 (66) 24,339 24,405

133 (66) 24,339 24,405

189,522 189,522 189,522 -

$ 189,655 $ 189,456 213,861 24,405

on
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

TDA Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 124,891 $ 124,891 $ 124,891 § -
Interest and use of property 728 728 728 -
Miscellaneous - - 8 8
Total revenues 125,619 125,619 125,627 8
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 12,561 12,545 6,509 6,036
Planning and public works 110,650 110,567 91,521 19,046
Building 3,199 3,298 2,990 308
Capital outlay 400 400 90 310
Total expenditures 126,810 126,810 101,110 25,700
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (1,191) (1,191) 24,517 25,708
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfer<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>